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 No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Massachusetts 
Health and Educational Facilities Authority, the Institution, the Bank or the Underwriter to give any 
information or to make any representations with respect to this offering, other than those contained 
in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not 
be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.  This Official Statement does not 
constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of Bonds in 
any jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which it is unlawful to 
make such an offer or solicitation.   

 Certain information contained herein has been obtained from the Institution, the Bank and 
other sources which are believed to be reliable, but such information is not guaranteed as to accuracy 
or completeness, and is not to be construed as a representation of the Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority or the Underwriter.  The Underwriter has provided the following 
sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The Underwriter has reviewed the information in 
this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibility to investors under the 
federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the 
Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy and completeness of such information.  The 
information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the 
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, 
create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority or the parties 
referred to above since the date hereof. 

 UPON ISSUANCE, THE BONDS WILL NOT BE REGISTERED WITH THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED.
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VARIABLE RATE DEMAND REVENUE BONDS 
ENDICOTT COLLEGE ISSUE, SERIES D (2004) 

INTRODUCTION

Purpose of this Official Statement.  The purpose of this Official Statement is to set forth certain information 
concerning the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the "Authority"), Endicott College (the 
"Institution") and the $33,625,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series D (2004) (the "Bonds") issued under a Loan and Trust Agreement dated 
as of April 20, 2004 (the "Agreement"), by and among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association, 
as Trustee (the "Trustee"), and Fleet National Bank (the "Bank"), as issuer of an irrevocable direct pay Letter of Credit 
(the "Letter of Credit") securing the Bonds.  The Bonds are issued in accordance with Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts 
Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time (the "Act"), and the Agreement.  The information contained in this Official 
Statement is provided for use in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds.  The definition of certain terms used and 
defined herein are contained in Appendix C-1 – "DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS." 

Use of Proceeds.  The proceeds from the sale of the Bonds will be used to (a) refund on a current basis the  
outstanding principal amount of the $13,880,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series C (the "Series C Bonds"); (b) refund on a current basis the  
outstanding principal amount of the $10,225,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series B (the "Series B Bonds"); (c) refinance the term loan 
provided by Fleet National Bank; (d) finance the construction of a new, approximately 200-bed residence hall and a new, 
approximately 100-space parking lot to be located on the main campus of the Institution; and (e) pay certain costs 
associated with the issuance of the Bonds.  (See "THE PROJECT" and "PLAN OF FINANCING"). 

SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

 The Authority, the Institution and the Trustee shall execute the Agreement, which provides that to the extent 
permitted by law, it is a general obligation of the Institution, payable from any and all sources of revenue available to the 
Institution for payment of the Bonds.  The Agreement also provides, among other things, that the Institution is obligated 
to make payments to the Trustee in an amount equal to principal or sinking fund installments, as the case may be, and 
interest on the Bonds and certain other payments required by the Agreement.  The Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect until such time as all of the Bonds and the interest thereon have been fully paid or until adequate provision for 
such payments has been made. 

 As additional security for the Bonds, the Bank will issue its Letter of Credit which will entitle the Trustee to 
draw an amount equal to the principal of and up to 45 days' accrued interest at the maximum rate of 10% per annum on 
the Bonds.  The Letter of Credit, a proposed form of which is attached hereto as Appendix D, will expire on 
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May 20, 2009 unless extended.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Letter of Credit and 
Reimbursement Agreement dated as of May 20, 2004, between the Institution and the Bank (the "Reimbursement 
Agreement"), the Bank may direct the Trustee to accelerate the principal of the Bonds and to draw on the Letter of 
Credit to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds.  The Bonds in the Weekly Mode will be subject to mandatory 
tender for purchase on the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the expiration or termination of the Letter 
of Credit unless the Letter of Credit is replaced or extended at least 45 days prior to such Interest Payment Date.  
The Letter of Credit may be replaced by a substitute Credit Facility, as described in the Agreement.  

THE BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, OR A 
PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES 
DERIVED BY THE AUTHORITY UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  NEITHER THE FAITH AND CREDIT 
NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE 
BONDS.  THE ACT DOES NOT IN ANY WAY CREATE A SO-CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS TO PAY DEBT SERVICE IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT BY 
THE INSTITUTION.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE ANY TAXING POWER.  

THE AUTHORITY

 The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the "Commonwealth") organized and existing under and by virtue of the Act.  The purpose of the 
Authority, as stated in the Act, is essentially to provide assistance for public and nonprofit private institutions for higher 
education, private nonprofit schools for the handicapped, nonprofit hospitals and their nonprofit affiliates, nonprofit 
nursing homes and nonprofit cultural institutions in the construction, financing and refinancing of projects to be 
undertaken in relation to programs for such institutions. 

Authority Membership and Organization

 The Act provides that the Authority shall consist of nine members who shall be appointed by the Governor 
and shall be residents of the Commonwealth.  At least two members shall be associated with institutions for higher 
education, at least two shall be associated with hospitals, at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of state and 
municipal finance (by virtue of business or other association) and at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of 
building construction.  All Authority members serve without compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement for 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Authority.  The Authority shall 
elect annually one of its members to serve as Chairman and one to serve as Vice Chairman.   

 The members of the Authority are as follows: 

David T. Hannan, Chairman; term as member expires July 1, 2006. 

 Mr. Hannan, a resident of Hingham, is President and Chief Executive Officer of South Shore Health & 
Educational Corporation of South Weymouth, Massachusetts, a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization and the 
parent of South Shore Hospital.  He is a member of the American College of Healthcare Executives, and the 
American Hospital Association. 

Joseph G. Sneider, Vice Chairman; term as member expires July 1, 2005. 

 Mr. Sneider, a resident of Newton, is Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of C&S Candy Co., Inc. located in 
Brockton and Justice of the Peace of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Mr. Sneider served as a trustee of Boston 
University Medical Center (University Hospital), Boston.  Mr. Sneider served as Senior Vice President of Olympic 
International Bank & Trust of Boston.  He also served on a number of public boards and commissions, and he belongs to 
several civic associations. 
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Marvin A. Gordon, Secretary; term as member expires July 1, 2010.   

 Mr. Gordon, a resident of Milton, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer of Gordon Logistics, 
L.L.C. in Norwood, Massachusetts.  From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Gordon served on the Board of Directors to Techniek 
Development Co. of San Diego, California.  He also served as Chairman of the Board of US Trust Norfolk (Milton Bank 
and Trust) from 1974 to 1976 and as Vice President and Member of the Executive Committee from 1971 to 1974.  Mr. 
Gordon has been actively engaged in non-profit, charitable and civic activities.  His affiliations include Treasurer and 
Chairman of the Finance Committee of Milton Hospital Corporation, President, Milton Fuller Housing Corporation, and 
Corporator of Curry College.  Mr. Gordon has been elected to and appointed to a number of public boards and belongs to 
several civic associations.  Mr. Gordon holds a degree from Harvard College and Harvard Business School. 

John F. Fish; term as member expires July 1, 2010. 

 Mr. Fish, a resident of Milton, is President and Chief Executive Officer of Suffolk Construction Company, Inc., 
one of the country's leading, privately held construction firms.  During his 20 years as President, the Company has 
expanded geographically to encompass Florida, California and New England and is engaged nationally in commercial, 
residential, education, retail and healthcare projects.  His honors and board memberships include: member of the 
Massachusetts Business Round Table, Board of Trustees of the Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center, the Wang Center 
for the Performing Arts, Tabor Academy, The Catholic School Foundation and the Boys and Girls Club of Boston, Board 
of Visitors of the Dimmock Community Health Center, and 2002 Recipient of the Peter and Carolyn Lynch Award.  Mr. 
Fish holds a B.A. from Bowdoin College. 

Robert E. Flynn, M.D.; term as member expires July 1, 2006. 

 Dr. Flynn, a resident of Dedham, is the former Chair of the Board of Caritas Christi, a current member of the 
Board of Governors of Caritas Christi, the former Secretary of Health Care Services for the Archdiocese of Boston, the 
Past Chairperson of the Massachusetts Hospital Association, and former Chairman of the Department of Medicine at 
Saint Elizabeth's Medical Center of Boston.  In 1991, Dr. Flynn was named a Distinguished Professor by Tufts 
University School of Medicine.  He is a Trustee of St. Elizabeth's Medical Center, Good Samaritan Hospice and 
St. Mary's Women and Infant's Center.  His current memberships in Medical Societies include the Boston Society of 
Psychiatry and Neurology, the Massachusetts Medical Society and the American Medical Association, and he is a Fellow 
of the American Academy of Psychiatry and Neurology. 

John E. Kavanagh, III; term as member expires July 1, 2004. 

 Mr. Kavanagh, a resident of Ipswich, is President and Chairman of William A. Berry & Son, Inc., one of the 
oldest construction companies in the country.  During his 19 years as President, he has redirected the company's focus 
from restoration specialties to a full-service building and construction management organization, with emphasis on 
meeting the full range of customer needs: planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance services.  
Mr. Kavanagh is a Trustee and the former Chairman of the Board of the North Shore Music Theater, Corporator of 
Brigham and Women's Hospital and Partners Healthcare, Trustee and member of the Board of Directors of 
Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary, Corporator of Danvers Savings Bank and a former member of Tufts University 
Board of Overseers. 

Allen R. Larson, Esq.; term as member expires July 1, 2007. 

 Allen R. Larson, a resident of Yarmouth Port, is the founding principal of a law firm and a separate consulting 
firm, the Enterprise Management Group, that advise business and non-profit clients on matters of government regulation, 
business competition, market entry and economic development.  Prior to establishing his law firm in 1984, Mr. Larson 
worked as an antitrust attorney for the Federal Trade Commission in Washington, D.C.  Currently, he is a Trustee of 
Cape Cod Community College, President of the Cape Code Center for Sustainability, a Director of the YMCA-Cape 
Cod, and a Member of the Yarmouth Town Finance Committee.  Mr. Larson graduated from Dartmouth College and 
earned a J.D. from Albany Law School and an M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. 
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Robert M. Platt; term as member expires July 1, 2009. 

 Mr. Platt, a resident of Newton, is President of National Consulting Inc., a business development and marketing 
strategy organization which assists clients in achieving their true market potential.  Mr. Platt works in conjunction with 
both state and federal government to facilitate the exchange of ideas and opportunities for clients.  His board 
memberships include Past President of the Newton Athletic Association, Past Board of Director of the Newton Youth 
Soccer for Boys and Girls, and Past Board Member of Youth Commission for the City of Newton.  Mr. Platt's current 
board memberships include Commissioner of Parks and Recreation of his ward in Newton; Advisory Board Member for 
Second Step, which aids women who have suffered domestic violence and abuse, and Member of the Board of Trustees 
for Curry College.  Mr. Platt holds a B.A. from Curry College. 

 There are nine Board members of the Authority.  Currently, there is one vacancy and a successor has not been 
appointed.

Staff and Advisors

Benson T. Caswell, a resident of North Andover, was appointed Executive Director of the Authority on April 
9, 2002, and is responsible for managing the Authority's affairs.  From 1992 through 2002, Mr. Caswell worked for 
Ponder & Co. in Chicago where he was a Senior Vice President.  From 1987 through 1992, he was Vice President of 
Ziegler Securities, Chicago, Illinois.  From 1983 through 1986, he was an attorney with Gardner, Carton & Douglas.  Mr. 
Caswell holds a Juris Doctor from the University of Chicago, an M.B.A. from Lehigh University and a B.S. from the 
University of Maine. 

Palmer & Dodge LLP, attorneys of Boston, Massachusetts, are serving as Bond Counsel to the Authority and 
will submit their approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Bonds as provided by the Agreement in substantially 
the form attached hereto as Appendix F. 

Public Financial Management, Inc. is serving as financial consultant to the Authority.  The financial 
consultant advises the Authority in connection with the issuance of its obligations and certain other financial matters. 

 The Act provides that the Authority may employ such other counsel, engineers, architects, accountants, 
construction and financial experts, or others as the Authority deems necessary. 

Powers of the Authority

 Under the Act, the Authority is authorized and empowered, among other things, directly or by and through a 
participating institution for higher education, a participating school for the handicapped, a participating hospital or 
hospital affiliate, a participating nursing home or participating cultural institution as its agent, to acquire real and personal
property and to take title thereto in its own name or in the name of one or more participants as its agent; to construct, 
reconstruct, remodel, maintain, manage, enlarge, alter, add to, repair, operate, lease, as lessee or lessor, and regulate any 
project; to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, or for the management and operating of a project; to issue 
bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations, and to fund or refund the same; to fix and revise from time to time 
and charge and collect rates, rents, fees and charges for the use of and for the services furnished or to be furnished by a 
project or any portion thereof and to enter into contracts in respect thereof; to establish rules and regulations for the use of
a project or any portion thereof; to receive and accept from any public agency loans or grants for or in the aid of the 
construction of a project or any portion thereof; to mortgage any project and the site thereof for the benefit of the holders 
of revenue bonds issued to finance such projects; to make loans to any participant for the cost of a project or to refund 
outstanding obligations, mortgages or advances issued, made or given by such participant for the cost of a project; to 
charge participants its administrative costs and expenses incurred; to acquire any federally guaranteed security and to 
pledge or use such security to secure or provide for the repayment of its bonds; and to do all things necessary or 
convenient to carry out the purposes of the Act.  Additionally, the Authority may undertake a joint project or projects for 
two or more participants.   
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Indebtedness of the Authority

 The Authority has heretofore authorized and issued certain series of its revenue bonds for public and private 
colleges and universities and private hospitals and their affiliates, community providers, cultural institutions, schools for 
the handicapped and nursing homes in the Commonwealth.  Each series of revenue bonds has been a special obligation of 
the Authority. 

 The Authority expects to enter into separate agreements with eligible institutions in the Commonwealth for the 
purpose of financing projects for such institutions.  Each series of bonds issued by the Authority constitutes a separate 
obligation of the borrowing institution for such series and is payable only from revenues provided by the institution for 
such series, and the general funds of the Authority are not pledged to any bonds or notes. 

THE BONDS 

Certain Details of the Bonds 

The Bonds shall be dated the date of initial delivery and shall mature on October 1, 2031.  The Bonds 
originally shall be issued in the Weekly Mode in minimum denominations of $100,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in 
excess thereof.  From and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Bonds shall be issued in the denomination of 
$5,000 or any multiple thereof. 

Bonds in the Weekly Mode shall bear interest at the Weekly Rate and will be payable on the first Business 
Day of each calendar month, with the first Interest Payment Date being June 1, 2004, and at maturity or on 
redemption dates.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as appropriate, and actual days 
elapsed.  Interest on Bonds in the Fixed Rate Mode shall bear interest at the Fixed Rate and will be paid on the first 
day in April and October with the first Interest Payment Date being the first day of either April or October, which 
date shall be at least two (2) but less than eight (8) months after the Conversion Date.  While the Bonds bear interest 
at a Fixed Rate, interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

While the Bonds bear interest at a Weekly Rate, interest on the Bonds shall be payable in immediately 
available funds by wire or bank transfer within the continental United States from the Trustee to the Registered 
Owners, as determined as of the close of business on the applicable record date, at their addresses as shown on the 
registration books maintained by the Trustee.  While the Bonds bear interest at a Fixed Rate, interest on the Bonds 
shall be payable by check or draft mailed by the Trustee to the Registered Owners of the Bonds, determined as of 
the close of business on the applicable record date, at their addresses as shown on the registration books maintained 
by the Trustee; provided that interest is payable by wire or bank transfer within the continental United States to 
Registered Owners of $1,000,000 or more in principal amount of the Bonds. 

Weekly Rate 

While in the Weekly Mode, the Bonds shall bear interest at a Weekly Rate, which rate shall be determined 
by the Remarketing Agent not later than the Effective Date.  The Weekly Rate (the "Weekly Rate") shall be the rate 
for each Rate Period, which as determined by the Remarketing Agent, is the lowest rate which in its judgment, on 
the basis of prevailing financial market conditions, would permit the sale of the Bonds at par plus accrued interest 
on and as of the Effective Date.  In no event will the Weekly Rate on the Bonds exceed 10% per annum, unless the 
Institution has increased the Maximum Interest Rate pursuant to the Agreement and the amount of the Letter of 
Credit has been increased accordingly. 

If for any reason the Weekly Rate on the Bonds cannot be established for any Rate Period as described 
above or is held invalid or unenforceable by a court of law, the interest rate on the Bonds during such Rate Period 
will be a rate determined by the Remarketing Agent which is not less than 90% nor more than 130% of the Interest 
Index.  If for any reason the Weekly Rate on the Bonds for the applicable Rate Period cannot be established as 
described in the preceding sentence, the interest rate on the Bonds for such Rate Period will equal the Interest Index.
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If for any reason the Remarketing Agent fails to determine the Effective Rate as provided herein for any Rate 
Period, the Effective Rate for that Rate Period shall be the same as the Effective Rate for the prior period. 

While the Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, the Effective Date shall be each Wednesday.  Pursuant to the 
Remarketing Agreement, the Remarketing Agent shall notify the Trustee and the Institution not later than the 
Effective Date of the change in the Weekly Rate, if any, to take effect on the Effective Date. 

Conversion Option 

The Bonds in the Weekly Mode may be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode upon the exercise by the 
Institution of its right to convert and upon compliance by the Institution with the provisions of the Agreement.  To 
exercise this conversion right, the Institution shall provide the Authority, the Trustee, the Bank, the Remarketing 
Agent and S&P, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P, with written notice not fewer than forty-five (45) nor more 
than sixty (60) days prior to the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date, informing the Authority, the Trustee, the 
Bank, the Remarketing Agent and S&P, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P, that the Institution is exercising its 
conversion right and setting forth the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date, which date shall be an Interest 
Payment Date under the Weekly Mode then in effect, and, if applicable, specifying the Credit Facility or any 
substitute Credit Facility to be delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the Agreement.  No later than thirty (30) days 
preceding the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Trustee shall mail a notice (the "Conversion Notice") to the 
Registered Owners of all Outstanding Bonds.  In addition, the interest rate on the Bonds shall not be converted to 
the Fixed Rate unless prior to 10:00 a.m. Boston, Massachusetts time on the Conversion Date, there shall be 
delivered to the Trustee an opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the conversion is permitted by the Agreement and 
that such conversion will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Bonds from the gross income of the 
owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the preconditions to conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode established by 
the Agreement are not met by 10:00 a.m. Boston, Massachusetts time on the Conversion Date, the Trustee shall 
deem the proposed conversion to have failed and shall promptly notify the Remarketing Agent and the Authority, 
and the Bonds shall not be subject to mandatory tender and shall remain in the Weekly Mode.  In no event shall the 
failure of Bonds to be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode for any reason be, in and of itself, deemed to be a Default 
or Event of Default under the Agreement. 

The Remarketing Agent shall determine the Fixed Rate not later than 2:00 p.m. Boston, Massachusetts time 
two (2) Business Days before the Fixed Rate Conversion Date.  The Fixed Rate shall be the lowest rate which in the 
judgment of the Remarketing Agent, on the basis of prevailing financial market conditions, would permit the sale of 
the Bonds being so converted at par plus accrued interest as of the Effective Date on the basis of their terms as 
converted.

The Remarketing Agent shall, if it determines that serialization will achieve a lower net interest cost on the 
Bonds, determine separate Fixed Rates to be assigned to Bonds to be redeemed from sinking fund installments in 
such amounts and in such years as the Remarketing Agent determines will achieve the lowest net interest cost on the 
Bonds; provided, however, that the principal amount of the Bonds to be so selected shall equal the mandatory 
sinking fund installments therefor.  Each Bond to be redeemed from sinking fund installments in the years to which 
a particular Fixed Rate is assigned shall be deemed to mature on the last date on which any Bond bearing interest at 
such Fixed Rate is to be redeemed from sinking fund installments.  The Remarketing Agent shall determine a 
separate Fixed Rate for each such maturity of Bonds.  On the date of determination thereof, the Remarketing Agent 
shall notify the Trustee by telephone confirmed in writing of the amounts and years assigned to the Bonds and the 
Fixed Rate. The Trustee shall promptly notify the Institution and the Authority in writing of the assigned amounts 
and years and the Fixed Rate.  The assignment of amounts and years and the determination of the Fixed Rate shall 
be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the Institution, the Bank and the Bondowners. 

On the date of determination thereof, the Remarketing Agent shall notify the Institution, the Authority, the 
Bank and the Trustee by telephone confirmed in writing of the Fixed Rate.  The determination of the Fixed Rate 
shall be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the Institution and the Bondowners.  The first Interest 
Payment Date of Bonds converted to the Fixed Rate shall be on the first day of either April or October, which date 
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shall be at least two (2) months but less than eight (8) months after the Conversion Date.  The Fixed Rate shall 
become effective on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date and shall remain in effect for the remaining term of the Bonds. 

Transfer and Exchange 

So long as the Bonds are registered in the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC, Bonds are transferable 
on the records of DTC only.  If the Bonds are not registered in the name of Cede & Co. for DTC, the Bonds are 
transferable by the Registered Owner, in person or by its attorney duly authorized in writing, at the office of the 
Trustee, upon surrender of the Bonds to the Trustee for cancellation.  Upon the transfer, a new Bond or Bonds in 
authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal amount will be issued to the transferee at the same office.  
No transfer will be effective unless represented by such surrender and reissue.  The Bonds may also be exchanged at 
the office of the Trustee for a new Bond or Bonds in authorized denominations of the same aggregate principal 
amount without transfer to a new registered owner.  Exchanges and transfers will be without expense to the owner 
except for applicable taxes or other governmental charges, if any.  The Trustee will not be required to make an 
exchange or transfer of the Bonds (except in connection with any optional or mandatory tender of the Bonds) during 
the fifteen (15) days preceding any date fixed for redemption if the Bonds (or any portions thereof) have been or are 
eligible to be selected for redemption. 

Optional Tender 

Prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, any Bond shall be purchased, at the option of the Bondowner 
thereof, at a price (the "Purchase Price") equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the principal amount thereof plus 
accrued interest, if any, thereon to the Purchase Date (as hereinafter defined), upon: 

(1) delivery to, and receipt by, the Trustee of a written irrevocable notice from the Bondowner 
("Bondowner's Election Notice") which (a) requests the purchase of such Bond by stating the principal amount of 
such Bond or portion thereof to be purchased ("Tendered Bond"), which portion shall be a minimum of $100,000 
(or the entirety of a Bond which has previously been reduced below $100,000 by partial redemption) or any 
multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof (and shall not result in any portion of a Bond not redeemed being below the 
minimum authorized denomination of $100,000) and stating the date on which the Tendered Bond shall be 
purchased, which date shall be a Business Day at least seven (7) calendar days following the receipt by the Trustee 
of the Bondowner's Election Notice (the "Purchase Date"), (b) contains the name and address of the Bondowner, (c) 
irrevocably requests such purchase, and (d) contains an undertaking of the Bondowner to deliver the Bond to the 
Trustee in accordance with (2) below; and 

(2) delivery of the Tendered Bond to the office of the Trustee at or prior to 10:00 a.m., Boston, 
Massachusetts time, on the Delivery Date with an appropriate endorsement for transfer or accompanied by a bond 
power endorsed in blank; provided, however, the Tendered Bond shall only be deemed properly tendered hereunder 
if the Tendered Bond delivered to the Trustee conforms in all respects to the description thereof in the Bondowner's 
Election Notice. 

However, if the Bonds are held in registered form with DTC, they shall be tendered in accordance with the 
rules and procedures established by DTC (see the caption "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM"). 

Bonds which are the subject of a Bondowner's Election Notice described in (1) above, but which are not 
tendered in accordance with (2) above, shall be deemed tendered and all rights of the Bondowner thereof shall be 
satisfied from the deposit with the Trustee of the Purchase Price in trust for the benefit of such Bondowner until the 
Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or for the account of such Bondowner.  Owners of 
Bonds to be tendered which are not delivered to the Trustee by the Bondowners thereof shall have no further rights 
with respect to such Bonds except to receive payment of the Purchase Price therefor upon surrender of such Bonds 
to the Trustee. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Bondowners shall have no right to exercise an optional tender 
described therein if at the time of tender or on the Purchase Date the principal of the Bonds shall have been 
accelerated and such acceleration shall not have been annulled. 
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Mandatory Tender 

Expiration of Credit Facility without Substitution or Replacement; Substitution of Credit Facility.  The 
Bonds in the Weekly Mode are subject to mandatory tender for purchase (i) in connection with the expiration, 
termination or substitution of the Credit Facility and failure by the Institution to provide for the delivery to the 
Trustee of a substitute Credit Facility or the extension of the then existing Credit Facility from the provider thereof 
at least forty-five (45) days prior to the Interest Payment Date preceding the expiration or termination date of the 
Credit Facility then in effect or, (ii) if the Bonds have been rated by S&P prior to such substitution, in connection 
with the substitution of a Credit Facility, unless at least 45 days prior to the substitution, the Trustee receives written 
notice from S&P that such substitution will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of the ratings on the Bonds.  Not 
more than forty-four (44) days prior to the mandatory tender date, and at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
mandatory tender date, the Trustee shall give notice to the Bondowners of the mandatory tender of Bonds pursuant 
to the Agreement. 

Conversion to Fixed Rate.  In the event that Bonds in the Weekly Mode are converted to the Fixed Rate 
Mode, such Bonds are subject to mandatory tender for purchase upon not less than thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice from the Trustee to the Bondowners, which notice shall state that the Bonds are subject to mandatory tender 
for purchase. 

Redemption Prior to Maturity 

Extraordinary Redemption Without Premium.  The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity in the 
event there are excess moneys in the Construction Fund after completion of the Project and in the event of a taking 
in condemnation or damage to or destruction of part or all of the Project at the direction of the Bank under the 
Reimbursement Agreement and related documents.  Such moneys (and earnings thereon) shall be used to reimburse 
the Bank for moneys drawn on the Credit Facility to redeem Bonds within one (1) year, as a whole or in part, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without 
premium.  If the amount so transferred in any one calendar year is less than $100,000, the Trustee may, and upon 
written direction of the Institution shall, apply it to regularly scheduled payment of debt service instead of calling 
Bonds for redemption. 

Mandatory Redemption Without Premium in the Event of Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank.  The Bonds are 
also subject to mandatory redemption if, within thirty (30) days of the occurrence of an Act of Bankruptcy of the 
Bank, a substitute Credit Facility has not been issued to the Trustee.  In such event, the Bonds shall be subject to 
redemption as a whole only from Eligible Funds as defined in the Agreement, within one hundred thirty (130) days 
after the occurrence of the Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium. 

Mandatory Redemption Without Premium - Expiration of Credit Facility.  The Bonds in the Fixed Rate 
Mode, if a Credit Facility is then in effect, are also subject to redemption prior to maturity in the event of the 
expiration of the Credit Facility and the failure by the Institution to provide for delivery to the Trustee of a 
substitute Credit Facility or notice from the provider of the existing Credit Facility of extension of the Credit 
Facility at least forty-five (45) days prior to the Interest Payment Date immediately preceding the expiration date of 
the Credit Facility then in effect.  In any such event, the Bonds shall be redeemed, as a whole from funds drawn on 
the expiring Credit Facility, on the Interest Payment Date at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal 
amount thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium. 

Optional Redemption.  The Bonds are also subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the 
Institution, as a whole or in part at any time, only from moneys drawn on the Credit Facility prior to the Fixed Rate 
Conversion Date and from and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date if a Credit Facility is then in effect, in the 
denomination of $100,000 or any multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, at a redemption price equal to (1) on or prior 
to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued interest to the redemption 
date, without premium, or (2) from and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date on and after the date and at the price 
(expressed as a percentage of principal amount to be redeemed) set forth in the following table, plus accrued interest 
to the redemption date: 



 - 9 -

Redemption Date Redemption Price

First Optional Redemption Date (as defined
in the Agreement) and thereafter 

100%

provided, however, that if the number of years between the Fixed Rate Conversion Date and the final maturity date 
is less than ten, the Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption. 

The Remarketing Agent may, by giving written notice to the Trustee at the time the Institution exercises 
the conversion option, establish such revised optional redemption dates and premiums as the Remarketing Agent 
shall, having due regard for prevailing financial market conditions, deem appropriate.  Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary contained herein, no such notice shall be effective unless the Institution shall have delivered to the 
Trustee at the time of delivery of such notice (1) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the establishment of 
such revised optional redemption dates and premiums are lawful under the Act and permitted by the Agreement and 
do not affect the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and (2) a 
resolution of the Authority approving such revised premiums and optional redemption dates.  Upon the satisfaction 
of the conditions specified in the Agreement, the revised optional redemption dates and premiums shall be 
conclusive and binding upon the Authority, the Institution, the Bondowners and the Remarketing Agent. 

At any time during which the Bonds are Pledged Bonds, the Bonds which are Pledged Bonds are subject to 
redemption at the option of the Institution, in whole or in part, in multiples of $100,000 or $5,000 in excess thereof, 
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, if any, to the redemption 
date, without premium. 

Scheduled Mandatory Redemption Without Premium.  The Bonds are also subject to scheduled mandatory 
redemption on October 1 of each of the years set forth below at a redemption price equal to the principal amount 
thereof, plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium, in the principal amounts set forth below: 

Year
(October 1)

Principal
Amount

 Year 
(October 1)

Principal
Amount

2004 $1,000,000  2018 $1,270,000 
2005 785,000  2019 1,315,000 
2006 815,000  2020 1,360,000 
2007 845,000  2021 1,405,000 
2008 880,000  2022 1,450,000 
2009 910,000  2023 1,500,000 
2010 945,000  2024 1,545,000 
2011 980,000  2025 1,600,000 
2012 1,020,000  2026 1,650,000 
2013 1,055,000  2027 1,705,000 
2014 1,095,000  2028 1,760,000 
2015 1,140,000  2029 1,820,000 
2016 1,180,000  2030 675,000 
2017 1,225,000    2031* 695,000 

* Final Maturity 
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Partial Redemptions 

Any partial redemption, other than scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption, shall reduce the 
mandatory sinking fund redemption obligation in the order of maturity of sinking fund installments selected by the 
Institution; provided, however, that Pledged Bonds shall be redeemed prior to the redemption of any other Bonds.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, so long as the Bonds are held in the book-entry only system, such selection shall be 
made by DTC in such manner as DTC may determine (See "BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM").  The Trustee may 
provide for the selection for redemption of portions of Bonds of a denomination larger than $100,000.  In no event 
shall the principal amount of Bonds held by any one Bondholder be less than $100,000. 

Notice of Redemption 

When Bonds are to be redeemed, the Trustee shall give notice to the Bondowners in the name of the 
Authority, which notice shall identify the Bonds to be redeemed, state the date fixed for redemption and specify the 
office of the Trustee at which such Bonds will be redeemed.  The notice shall further state that on such date there 
shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the redemption price thereof, together with interest 
accrued to the redemption date, and that moneys therefor having been deposited with the Trustee, from and after 
such date, interest thereon shall cease to accrue and that the Bonds or portions thereof called for redemption shall 
cease to be entitled to any benefit under the Agreement except the right to receive payment of the redemption price.  
The Trustee shall mail the redemption notice no less than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the 
registered owners of any Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their addresses shown on the registration books 
maintained by the Trustee.  Failure to mail notice to a particular Bondowner, or any defect in the notice to such 
Bondowner, shall not affect the redemption of any other Bond. 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

DTC

The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s 
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-
registered Bond certificate for each maturity will be issued in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and 
all certificates will be deposited with or for the account of DTC. 

DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, 
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s participants 
("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants 
of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry 
transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of 
securities certificates.  Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust 
companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC").  DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants 
of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing 
Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, MBSCC, 
and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock 
Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.  Access to the DTC system is also available 
to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or 
indirectly ("Indirect Participants").  DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to 
its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be 
found at www.dtcc.com. 
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Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, who will 
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (the 
"Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners 
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to 
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, 
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  Transfers 
of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing 
their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is 
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such 
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 
accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect 
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds are being redeemed, DTC’s practice 
is to determine by lot the amount of the principal of each Direct Participant to be redeemed. 

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to Bonds 
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s procedures.  Under its usual procedures, DTC 
mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on 
the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

Principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Trustee on the 
payment date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  Payments by Participants to 
Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities 
held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name", and will be the responsibility of 
such Participant and not of DTC (nor its nominee), the Underwriter, the Trustee, the Institution or the Authority, 
subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment of principal and 
interest to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC, is the 
responsibility of the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of 
DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants.

DTC may determine to discontinue providing its service with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving 
reasonable notice to the Authority and the Trustee.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor 
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered as described in the Agreement.  
The Beneficial Owner, upon registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the 
Bondholder.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that the Authority believes to be reliable, but none of the Authority, the Institution or the Underwriter takes 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 
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For every transfer and exchange of the Bonds, the Beneficial Owner may be charged a sum sufficient to 
cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto. 

No Responsibility of Authority, Institution, Trustee and Bank 

NONE OF THE AUTHORITY, THE INSTITUTION, THE TRUSTEE OR THE BANK WILL HAVE 
ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATIONS TO DTC PARTICIPANTS OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM 
THEY ACT AS NOMINEES WITH RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF NOTICE 
FOR DTC PARTICIPANTS, INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR BENEFICIAL OWNERS. 

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, AS NOMINEE OF 
DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE BONDOWNERS OR REGISTERED OWNERS OF THE BONDS 
SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS. 

Certificated Bonds

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 
giving reasonable notice to the Authority and the Trustee.  In addition, the Authority may determine that continuation of 
the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the best interests of the 
Beneficial Owners.  If for either reason the Book-Entry Only system is discontinued, Bond certificates will be delivered 
as described in the Agreement and the Beneficial Owner, upon registration of certificates held in the Beneficial Owner's 
name, will become the Bondowner.  Thereafter, the Bonds may be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of 
the Bonds in other authorized denominations and of the same maturity, upon surrender thereof at the principal corporate 
trust office of the Trustee.  The transfer of any Bond may be registered on the books maintained by the Trustee for 
such purpose only upon assignment in form satisfactory to the Trustee.  For every exchange or registration of 
transfer of the Bonds, the Authority and the Trustee may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or 
other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or registration of transfer, but no other 
charge may be made to the Bondowner for any exchange or registration of transfer of the Bonds.  The Trustee will 
not be required to transfer or exchange any Bond during the notice period preceding any redemption if such Bond 
(or any part thereof) is eligible to be selected or has been selected for redemption. 

THE PROJECT 

Refinancing and Repayment of Existing Debt

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to (a) refund on a current basis the outstanding principal 
amount of the Series C Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to finance and refinance (i) the construction of a new 
120-bed residence hall and the acquisition of 40 acres of land adjacent to the Institution's main campus, (ii) the 
construction of 24 modular housing units, (iii) the construction of a maintenance facility and (iv) the construction of a 
new, approximately 55,000 square foot, 220-bed residence hall; (b) refund on a current basis the outstanding principal 
amount of the Series B Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to finance and refinance various building, plant and 
grounds improvements including dormitory repairs, roof and building repairs, administrative and faculty office 
renovations, energy conservation improvements and athletic program facilities improvements; various interior 
renovations including electrical system upgrading, campus re-cabling and telephone/fire/alarm security system upgrading 
and the acquisition of academic and administrative equipment including computers on the campus of the Institution, (ii) 
the construction of ten and one half (10½) units of dormitory townhouses, (iii) the construction of an approximately 
26,500 square foot apartment style dormitory facility with approximately 24 suites to house 105 beds on the campus of 
the Institution and (iv) the construction and equipping of an approximately 83,000 square foot sports science and fitness 
center containing a gymnasium, locker rooms, fitness area and sports science classrooms; and (c) refinance a term loan 
provided by Fleet National Bank, the proceeds of which were used, in part, to acquire a 21-room house located at 407 
Hale Street adjacent to the main campus of the Institution. 
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Construction of a New Residence Hall

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to construct a new, approximately 200-bed residence hall 
and a new, approximately 100-space parking lot to be located on the main campus of the Institution. 

PLAN OF FINANCING

 The estimated sources and uses of funds in connection with the Bonds are as follows: 

Estimated Sources of Funds

Principal Amount of the Bonds $ 33,625,000

 Total Sources of Funds $ 33,625,000

Estimated Uses of Funds

Series B Bonds Refunding Trust Fund $  8,247,877 
Series C Bonds Refunding Trust Fund 12,856,576 
Payoff of term loan obligations  5,000,000 
Total Letter of Credit Fees Paid at Closing 75,742 
Project Costs 7,003,311 
Costs of Issuance (including Authority fees, underwriter's discount,           

remarketing fee and legal fees)         441,494

 Total Uses of Funds $ 33,625,000

BONDOWNERS' RISKS 

The purchase and holding of the Bonds are subject to certain risks.  Each prospective Bondowner is 
encouraged to read in their entirety this Official Statement and the Appendices hereto, including the summary of the 
Agreement and the form of Letter of Credit.  Particular attention should be given to the factors described below, 
which, among others, could affect the payment of debt service on the Bonds and the Bondowners rights to retain 
ownership of the Bonds. 

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption at any time while in the Weekly Mode and special 
redemption upon the occurrence of certain events more particularly described under "THE BONDS - Redemption 
Prior to Maturity".  Bondowners may be unable to continue to hold their Bonds in the event of redemption.  Under 
the terms of the Agreement, upon the occurrence of an Event of Default thereunder, all of the Bonds may be 
declared by the Trustee to be immediately due and payable.  In such event, the principal of the Bonds, without 
premium, and all interest accrued thereon to the accelerated payment date shall become due and payable. 

The Bonds are secured by the Letter of Credit.  The availability of the Letter of Credit and the ability of the 
Bank to meet its obligations thereunder are dependent on the Bank's future financial condition.  See Appendix E for 
information regarding the Bank.  Under the Agreement, the Institution has the right to substitute a substitute Credit 
Facility for the Letter of Credit under certain circumstances in accordance with the requirements set forth in the 
Agreement. 

The Bonds are being offered on the basis of the financial strength of the Bank and not on the financial 
strength of the Institution; however, as a courtesy, information on the Institution is being provided.  See Appendix 
A - "INFORMATION CONCERNING THE INSTITUTION". 

In the Reimbursement Agreement, the Institution makes certain covenants for the benefit of the Bank.  A 
failure by the Institution to comply with any of these covenants may result in an Event of Default under the 
Reimbursement Agreement, in which event the Bank may direct the Trustee to accelerate or redeem the Bonds.  The 
performance of the Institution will depend to some degree upon factors beyond the control of the Institution, 
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including general national and local economic conditions, population trends, and federal, state and local taxation and 

laws and regulations affecting the Institution. 

The Bonds are not subject to mandatory redemption in the event that interest payable on the Bonds is 

determined to be includable in the gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes. 

LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreement 

(the "Reimbursement Agreement").  This summary does not purport to be complete and reference is made to the 

Reimbursement Agreement for complete statements of all provisions. 

The Institution has entered into the Reimbursement Agreement with the Bank under which the Bank has 

agreed to issue the Letter of Credit and the Institution has agreed to reimburse the Bank for sums drawn on the Letter 

of Credit in accordance with its terms in an aggregate amount not exceeding $34,039,555 (the “Stated Amount”), of 

which (1) $33,625,000 (as from time to time reduced or reinstated as provided in this Letter of Credit, the “Principal 

Component”) shall support the payment of the principal or portion of the purchase price corresponding to principal 

of the Bonds, and (2) $414,555 (as from time to time reduced or reinstated as provided in this Letter of Credit, the 

“Interest Component”) shall support the payment of up to 45 days’ interest on the Bonds or portion of the purchase 

price corresponding to interest at an assumed rate of 10% per annum.  The Reimbursement Agreement also provides 

for a quarterly letter of credit fee, drawing fees, transfer fees and other fees, interest and charges.  The Institution's 

obligations under the Reimbursement Agreement are secured by, among other things, a Mortgage and Security 

Agreement from the Institution to the Bank. 

The Reimbursement Agreement sets forth conditions to the issuance of the Letter of Credit and certain 

representations and warranties of the Institution which are to be true at the closing date.  Such representations and 

warranties include representations as to: organization and legal existence; no litigation pending against the 

Institution; no violation of organizational documents or any other material agreements; good tax standing; 

compliance with laws; good, clear and marketable title to assets; complete and accurate financial statements; and 

compliance with obligations necessary to construct the Facility. 

The Reimbursement Agreement also contains affirmative and negative covenants and reporting 

requirements.  Affirmative covenants include: prompt payment of amounts when due; payment of taxes, assessments 

or levies; maintenance of insurance; maintenance of existence; compliance with laws; right of access and inspection 

by Bank; maintenance of records and books of account; maintenance and preservation of property necessary and 

useful in conduct of business; charging of tuition rates, fees, rental and charges sufficient to pay amounts when due 

and pay operating, maintenance and repair expenses; compliance with specified financial covenants; and 

maintenance of a loan to value ratio based on the appraised value of the Institution's real property covered by the 

Mortgage and Security Agreement.  Negative covenants include: limitation of further indebtedness, subject to 

exceptions described therein; limitations on further liens, subject to exceptions described therein; limitations on 

assumption of obligations of others; no liquidation, dissolution, merger or consolidation, or sale, assignment or lease 

of substantially all assets; no sale, assignment, discount or disposition of accounts receivable, except assignment for 

collection in the ordinary course of business; no loans or advances, subject to exceptions described therein; no 

change in fiscal year; no change in name or legal structure; no sale-leaseback transactions; no partnership or joint 

venture; no sale, transfer, lease or other disposition of property exceeding five percent of value of property, plant and 

equipment; no affiliate transactions, except in the ordinary course upon fair and reasonable terms no less favorable 

than obtainable in a transaction with a Person which is not an affiliate; and no disposition or storage of any 

hazardous materials, subject to exceptions described therein.  Reporting requirements include furnishing: annual 

audited financial reports; semi-annual unaudited financial reports; compliance certificates; notice of the occurrence 

of an event of default; annual operating budget; notice of any development likely to have a materially adverse effect 

on the Institution; copy of final audits or reports associated with any audits of the Institutions books; reportable 

ERISA events, as specified therein; and environmental events, as specified therein. 
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The Reimbursement Agreement also sets out certain "events of default."  It includes:  (i) failure to pay 

amounts due to the Bank under the Reimbursement Agreement within three business days of when due; (ii) failure to 

comply with covenants; (iii) misrepresentation; (iv) any uncured or unwaived default under any undertaking with or 

for the benefit of the Bank; (v) the occurrence of defaults which would permit or have resulted in the acceleration of 

any indebtedness exceeding $200,000; (vi) bankruptcy, reorganization or other insolvency proceeding of the 

Institution; (vii) writ, attachment, execution or similar process for more than $200,000 if not paid, released, vacated 

or fully bonded within 15 days; (viii) failure to meet ERISA funding requirements; (ix) substantial loss, theft, taking, 

damage or destruction to property having a materially adverse effect on the business, prospects, operations or 

financial condition of the Institution; (x) any loss of perfection or priority of the Bank's liens; (xi) final, uninsured 

judgment exceeding $200,000 against the Institution; (xii) an event of default under the related documents; and (xiii) 

an environmental event having a materially adverse effect on the business, prospects, operations or financial 

condition of the Institution. 

Upon the occurrence of an "event of default," the Bank may, among other things:  (i) notify the Trustee of 

such an "event of default," resulting in acceleration of the Bonds and drawings under the Letter of Credit; (ii) enforce 

its rights and remedies under the Mortgage and Security Agreement; (iii) enforce its rights against the Institution 

through legal action; (iv) exercise all rights and remedies under any other agreement or applicable law; (v) not 

reinstate the interest component drawn under the Letter of Credit; (vi) demand the Institution provide cash in the 

amount of 105 percent of the stated Letter of Credit amount with interest not exceeding the interest rate on the Bonds 

to be held as security; and (vii) require the Institution to obtain a replacement letter of credit. 

The Reimbursement Agreement also contains provisions as to the Bank's right (but not obligation) to cure 

certain Institution defaults; Institution's indemnification of the Bank; limitation of liability of the Bank and its 

representatives; limitation of liability; payment of certain costs, expenses and taxes; governing law; consent to 

jurisdiction; and other miscellaneous provisions. 

The Reimbursement Agreement may be amended at any and from time to time without the consent of the 

issuer, Trustee, or Bondholders. 

LEGALITY OF BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT 

The Act provides that the Bonds are legal investments in which all public officers and public bodies of the 

Commonwealth or its political subdivisions, insurance companies, trust companies, savings banks, cooperative 

banks, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees and other fiduciaries, may 

properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging to them.  The Bonds, under the Act, 

are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any Commonwealth or municipal 

officer or any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any purpose for which the deposit of bonds 

or other obligations of the Commonwealth is now or may hereafter be authorized by law. 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS NOT LIABLE ON BONDS 

The Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the Commonwealth or any political 

subdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or of any such political subdivision, but 

shall be payable solely from Revenues pledged therefor and any other funds held under the Agreement for such 

purpose.  Neither the faith and credit not the taxing power of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision 

thereof is pledged to the payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds.  The Act does not in any way create a 

so-called moral obligation of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt service in the 

event of default by the Institution.  The Authority has no taxing power. 
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NO CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is material to any 

decision to purchase, hold or sell the bonds, and the Authority will not provide any such information.  The Institution 

has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to the Bondowners, if any, and the Authority shall 

have no liability to Bondowners or any other person with respect to such disclosures. 

While the Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, they are exempt from the provisions of Securities and Exchange 

Commission Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule").  Accordingly, the Institution is not obligated to comply with the Rule's 

continuing disclosure requirements, and the Bonds will not be subject to the Rule at the time of issuance.  The 

Institution has had no previous undertaking to provide annual reports or notices of material events in accordance 

with the Rule and therefore has never failed to comply with the Rule.  Under the Agreement, the Institution has, 

however, covenanted to comply with the Rule when and as the Rule shall apply to the Bonds. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Bond Counsel ("Bond Counsel"), based upon an analysis of 

existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain 

covenants, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 

of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code").  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the 

Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum taxes, 

although Bond Counsel observes that such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating 

corporate alternative minimum taxable income. 

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Bonds and any profit on the sale 

of the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and that the Bonds are exempt from 

Massachusetts personal property taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to other Massachusetts tax consequences 

arising with respect to the Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners should be aware, however, that the Bonds are included 

in the measure of Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the Bonds and the interest thereon are included in 

the measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to the 

taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.  A complete 

copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix F hereto. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross 

income for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Bonds.  The Authority and the 

Institution have covenanted to comply with certain restrictions designed to ensure that interest on the Bonds will not 

be included in federal gross income.  Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Bonds 

being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance of the 

Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these covenants.  Certain requirements and 

procedures contained or referred to in the Agreement and other relevant documents may be changed and certain 

actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Bonds) may be taken or omitted under the circumstances and 

subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or 

to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of 

issuance of the Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.  Further, no 

assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, including amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or 

any proposed legislation, including amendments to the Code, or any regulatory or administrative development with 

respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Bonds.  Prospective 

Bondowners are urged to consult their own tax advisors with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income 

tax. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for 

federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or disposition 

of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Bonds may otherwise affect a Bondowner’s federal or state tax 

liability.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon the particular tax status of the 
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Bondowner or the Bondowner’s other items of income or deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding 

any such other tax consequences, and Bondowners should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such 

consequences. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Bonds by the Authority are subject to 

the approval of Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel, whose opinion approving the validity 

and tax exempt status of the Bonds will be delivered with the Bonds.  Certain legal matters will be passed on for the 

Institution by its counsel, Palmer & Dodge LLP, Boston, Massachusetts; for the Bank by its counsel, Edwards & 

Angell, LLP, Boston, Massachusetts; and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Edwards & Angell, LLP, Providence, 

Rhode Island. 

RATING 

Standard & Poor's has assigned the Bonds a rating of AA-/A-1+ based upon the rating of the Bank.  No 

application has been made to any other rating agency in order to obtain additional rating on the Bonds.  The rating 

reflects the rating agency's current assessment of the creditworthiness of the Bank and its ability to perform its 

obligations under the Letter of Credit.  Any further explanation of the significance of the above rating should be 

obtained from such rating agency.  Generally, a rating agency bases its ratings on the information and materials 

furnished it and on investigations, studies and assumptions by the rating agency. 

Ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the Bonds.  There is no assurance that a particular 

rating will apply for any given period of time or that it will not be lowered or withdrawn entirely if, in the judgment 

of the agency originally establishing the rating, circumstances so warrant.  The Underwriter has undertaken no 

responsibility either to bring to the attention of the owners of the Bonds any proposed revision or withdrawal of the 

rating of the Bonds or to oppose any such proposed revision or withdrawal.  Any downward revision or withdrawal 

of such rating, or either of them, could have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds. 

UNDERWRITING 

Banc of America Securities LLC has agreed to purchase the Bonds at an Underwriter's discount of 

$58,843.75 from the principal amount set forth on the cover page hereof.  The Institution has agreed to indemnify the 

Underwriter and the Authority against certain liabilities, including certain liabilities arising under federal and state 

securities laws. 

REMARKETING 

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Remarketing Agreement (the "Remarketing Agreement") between 

the Institution and Banc of America Securities LLC, as Remarketing Agent, the Remarketing Agent has agreed to 

remarket the Bonds and otherwise perform the duties of the Remarketing Agent under the Remarketing Agreement.  

The Remarketing Agreement provides that the Institution will indemnify the Remarketing Agent against certain 

liabilities, including certain liabilities under applicable securities laws. 

Pursuant to the Remarketing Agreement, the rights and obligations of Banc of America Securities LLC, as 

Remarketing Agent may be assumed by an affiliate of Banc of America Securities LLC without the consent of the 

Institution or the Bondowners. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The references found herein to the Agreement are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof.  Such 

summaries do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Agreement for full and complete statements 

of such provisions.  The agreements of the Authority with the Bondowners are fully set forth in the Agreement, and 

neither any advertisement of the Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be construed as constituting an agreement by 
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the Authority, Institution or Underwriter with the Bondowners.  So far as any statements are made in this Official 

Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, they are intended merely as such and not 

as representations of fact. 

Information relating to DTC and the book-entry system described under the heading "THE BONDS" has 

been furnished by DTC.  None of the Authority, the Institution or the Underwriter makes any representations or 

warranties whatsoever with respect to such information. 

Appendix A to this Official Statement contains certain information provided by Endicott College relating to 

the Institution.  Appendix B to this Official Statement sets forth the audited financial statements of the Institution for 

its fiscal year ended June 30, 2003 and the report of its independent certified public accountants, KPMG LLP. 

Neither the Authority nor the Underwriter makes any representations or warranties whatsoever with respect to such 

information. 

All of the Appendices attached hereto are incorporated as an integral part of this Official Statement. 

MASSACHUSETTS HEALTH AND EDUCATIONAL 

FACILITIES AUTHORITY 

By:   /s/ Benson T. Caswell   

 Benson T. Caswell 

 Executive Director 
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May 12, 2004 

Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street, Suite 1000 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110-1240 

Dear Members of the Authority: 

This letter and the information contained herein are submitted to the Authority for inclusion in its 
Official Statement relating to its $33,625,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College 
Issue, Series D (2004) (the “Bonds”).  The use of this letter by the Authority in connection with the initial 
sale of the Bonds has been authorized by the Board of Trustees of Endicott College (the “College” or 
“Endicott”).

Background and History

Founded in 1939, the College is a private coeducational, nonprofit, non-sectarian institution of 
higher education.  In 1944, the College was approved by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to grant 
the Associate in Arts and Associate in Science degrees and in 1952, received accreditation from the New 
England Association of Schools and Colleges.  Endicott was founded as a two-year institution “to educate 
women for greater independence and an enhanced position in the workplace.” In 1993, Endicott began 
shifting its focus to that of a more traditional four-year institution, eliminating over 30 associate degree 
programs.  In 1994, the College became coeducational.  Today, all undergraduate day program students 
are Bachelor Degree candidates.

Endicott College seeks to provide an education built upon a combination of theory and practice, 
which is tested through internships and work experience.  The College supports two major educational 
components: the Undergraduate College and the School of Graduate and Professional Studies. 

 Endicott College is located on a 200-acre oceanfront campus in Beverly, Massachusetts, 30 miles 
north of the City of Boston.  There are currently 3,163 students enrolled in undergraduate, graduate and 
professional development credit bearing courses, 202 of whom are enrolled in Madrid, Spain, Mexico 
City, Mexico or Glion, Switzerland.   

The Undergraduate College

Curriculum and Degree Programs

Programs at the College lead to Bachelor of Arts in Liberal Studies, Bachelor of Fine Arts, and 
Bachelor of Science degrees in the following majors: Athletic Training, Business Administration, 
Communications, Criminal Justice, Education, English, Environmental Studies, Global Studies, 
Hospitality and Tourism Administration, Human Services, Information and Computer Technology, 
Interior Design, Liberal Studies, Nursing, Physical Education Teacher Licensure, Psychology, Sport 
Management and Visual Communications/Graphic Design.  
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Internship

 The College requires students, as part of all undergraduate degree programs, to participate in 
internships to gain practical experience and develop relationships with professionals who are in the 
students' fields of study.  As an alternative to a U.S.-based internship, students may select an internship 
program in London, Mexico, or Spain. The internship experiences prepare Endicott graduates for 
immediate entry into their profession upon graduation.  Endicott estimates that 40% of students receive 
offers or career opportunities from their internship placements.  Recent data for 2002 graduates indicates 
that 87% of day division graduates were employed within 12 months, the majority of whom are employed 
in a position directly relating to their major, while 9% of day division graduates were pursuing graduate 
education.

International Affiliations

Endicott recognizes the importance of cross-cultural and international experiences. Endicott has a 
campus in Mexico City, Mexico.  Students from Mexico City complete the first two years of study at the 
College’s Mexico City campus, and then transfer to the Beverly campus to complete their final two years 
of a baccalaureate degree. Graduate programs with specializations in Elementary Education and 
International Education are also offered on the Mexico campus. The graduate programs are specifically 
designed for American teachers at bilingual schools in Mexico City and allow these teachers to obtain a 
U.S. accredited Master degree without leaving Mexico.  Students from the Beverly campus have the 
option of doing a semester or full-year study abroad program at the Mexico City campus. 

 Endicott has an affiliation with the College of International Studies ("CIS") in Madrid, Spain, a 
two-year college for Spanish students who seek an alternative to the Spanish university system.  Under 
the affiliation agreement, Endicott provides supervision, academic guidance and record-keeping to this 
degree-granting institution and manages its study abroad programs for American universities and 
colleges. Students enrolled at CIS receive Endicott academic credit and can transfer to Endicott in 
Beverly to complete their baccalaureate degree.  This collaboration is intended to benefit both institutions 
with opportunities for increased enrollments, new programs and faculty exchanges.  In addition, students 
from Endicott in Beverly may do a semester study abroad at the CIS campus in Madrid. 

Endicott also partners with the Glion Hotel School in Glion, Switzerland to offer a Master in 
Education with a specialization in Hospitality Management and a Master in Business Administration.   

Academic Support Services

 Endicott's Academic Support Center provides a variety of programs to meet individual needs.  
The Student Support Program, for example, is designed to help students who experience academic 
difficulties.  Professional tutors work with students individually and in small groups to help develop good 
time- management skills, appropriate learning strategies, and effective study skills to enable the student to 
succeed in the college environment.  

School for Graduate and Professional Studies

The School of Graduate and Professional Studies offers adult learners seeking advanced 
professional training the opportunity to complete graduate and undergraduate programs in education, 
business administration, and psychology.  Adult learners enroll in cohort-based degree programs and 
attend classes in the evening or weekends throughout the year.  Courses are provided both on campus and 
at various corporate or school district locations throughout the North Shore and greater Boston area. 
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The School of Graduate and Professional Studies grants Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, 
Bachelor of Science, Master in Education and Master in Business Administration degrees.  In addition to 
degree programs, professional development programs and consulting are offered through the Center for 
Leadership.

The School of Graduate and Professional Studies is growing rapidly. A new graduate school 
building has contributed to the increasing adult student population. Currently, 438 students are enrolled in 
graduate and professional studies programs.  It is projected that this number will increase to 1,000 
students within five years. An additional 927 non-matriculated students are enrolled in graduate courses.  
These students are enrolled in credit courses for professional development that frequently meet state 
requirements for maintaining licensure but are not necessarily seeking a graduate degree. 

Recent Program Initiatives

New Degree Programs 

The College continues to expand educational opportunities for students through enhanced degree 
programs.  Most recently, Endicott received approval from the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education 
for a Bachelor of Arts in English, Bachelor of Arts in Global Studies, Bachelor of Science in 
Environmental Studies, and a Bachelor of Science in Human Services.  These programs will begin in fall 
2004.

The Campaign for Endicott College 

 In October 2000, the Board of Trustees of the College approved the initiation of a $16.5 million 
capital campaign (the “Campaign”), the first capital campaign in Endicott’s history.  As of April 1, 2004, 
the College has received $13,700,000 in cash and pledges towards its goal and has targeted successful 
completion of the Campaign in 2004.   

 Funds from the Campaign have been used to complete the following projects: 

• Construction of a 20,000 square foot addition to the library that has provided new research and 
study space, technology offices and state-of-the art classrooms.  This facility was completed in 
May, 2002. 

• Construction of The Van Loan Graduate School that provides a state-of-the-art facility for 
students in graduate and professional studies.  This facility was completed in October 2003. 

The next project to be completed with funds from the Campaign is the conversion of the South Campus – 
Tupper and Ebinger Halls, and the Bierkoe Gymnasium – into a Conference and Professional Education 
Center and executive lodging facility.  The estimated cost of construction is $5,500,000. 

State-of-the-Art Technology 

Endicott has state-of-the-art technology with Ethernet connections to every office, classroom, 
residence hall, and resident student bedroom.  Most classrooms provide an innovative instructional 
environment with Internet resources and multimedia capability that allows technology to be fully 
integrated into the curriculum.  Beginning in fall 2004, incoming students in the Business program will be 
required to have a laptop computer.  It is anticipated that this requirement will be expanded to other 
majors within the next two years. 
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Accreditation and Approvals

Endicott is accredited by the New England Association of Schools and Colleges, Inc.  In 1997, the 
New England Association of Schools and Colleges continued Endicott’s accreditation with a ten-year 
accreditation through the year 2007, the maximum term of accreditation awarded by the Association. In 
making the official notification of continuation, the NEASC Commission on Higher Education 
acknowledged Endicott’s recent achievements when they wrote: 

“We commend the Endicott community, under the leadership of President Wylie, for having 
undertaken several daring challenges since its last accreditation that have transformed the institution 
from a two-year women’s college with declining enrollments and a precarious financial state to a thriving 
four year, coeducational institution with increasing enrollments and a sound financial base now offering 
Master’s degree programs and programs through the College for International Studies, Madrid, Spain.  
We further commend the faculty for their concentrated efforts in designing substantial and coherent four-
year programs of study.  Both the visiting team members and the Commission were favorably impressed 
by the College’s commitment to the blend of theory and internships in every academic program.  Finally, 
the Commission takes cognizance of the fact that the institution benefits from the purposefulness, vigor, 
and commitment of its President.”

Endicott has specialized and professional accreditations for certain of its programs.  The most 
recent program approval occurred in fall 2003 from the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education for its 
Criminal Justice program.  Endicott was one of six baccalaureate programs from New England colleges 
receiving approval out of sixteen institutions that applied.  The programs that have professional 
accreditations are: 

Athletic Training – CAAHAP – Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education 
Criminal Justice – Massachusetts Board of Higher Education (Quinn Bill) 
Education – Massachusetts Department of Education (Teacher Certification) 
Interior Design – FIDER – Foundation for Interior Design Education Research 
Nursing – NLN – National League for Nursing 
Physical Education – Massachusetts Department of Education (Teacher Certification) 
Sports Management:  

– NASSM – North American Society for Sport Management 
– NASPE – National Association for Sport and Physical Education  

Memberships and Affiliations

Endicott is a founding member of the Northeast Consortium of Colleges and Universities in 
Massachusetts (NECCUM).  Other members of this group include Gordon College, Marian Court 
College, Merrimack College, Montserrat School of Art, Middlesex Community College, North Shore 
Community College, Northern Essex Community College, Salem State College, and the University of 
Massachusetts-Lowell. NECCUM sponsors a cross-registration program to make available to students the 
resources of all ten Colleges.  Endicott also holds memberships in such organizations as the American 
Council of Education, Association of American Colleges, National Association of Student Personnel 
Administrators, National Association of College and University Business Officers and Association of 
Independent Colleges and Universities in Massachusetts. 

Athletics

 Endicott is a member of the Commonwealth Coast Conference and the New England Football 
Conference for athletic competition. The Commonwealth Coast Conference membership includes Anna 
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Maria College, Colby Sawyer College, Curry College, Eastern Nazarene College, Gordon College, New 
England College, Nichols College, Regis College, Roger Williams University, Salve Regina University, 
Wentworth Institute of Technology and University of New England. The New England Football 
Conference includes schools such as Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Salve Regina University, 
Bridgewater State College and Fitchburg State College. 

With 370 student athletes on 19 teams including a new football program, Endicott is a proven 
leader in the Commonwealth Coast Conference as well as the other conferences in which it competes.  
Since moving to NCAA, Division III in 1993-4, Endicott has captured 18 league championships and 
appeared in 8 NCAA Regional tournaments and 7 ECAC New England tournaments.  Endicott has had 
numerous All League Players of the Year and Coaches of the Year recognized for their participation and 
leadership.

Governance

The College is governed by a self-perpetuating Board of Trustees (the “Board”) consisting of up 
to 30 members.  Currently the Board has 27 members.  Membership consists of the President of the 
Alumni Association, the President of the College and members serving three-year terms of office.  
Trustees can be reelected for successive three-year terms without limit.  Officers of the Board of Trustees 
are elected for two-year terms and may be re-elected for one additional two-year term.  52% percent of 
the Board has served for ten or more years, 15% for five or more years and 33% for less than five years.  
Board members who retire are eligible for the position of Trustee Emeriti, which carries the same 
privileges as a member of the Board except the right to vote.  There are six standing committees of the 
Board of Trustees:  Executive, Nominating, Compensation and Personnel Practices, Audit, Finance, 
Grounds and Facilities, Institutional Advancement, Student Affairs, and Academic Affairs.  Committees 
of the Board meet prior to each Board meeting, except Executive and Finance that meet monthly.  The 
Board meets three times a year, in February, May and October. 

The following list identifies the current members of the Board, the year of initial appointment, 
and the principal business or professional affiliation of each member. 

Year of 
Initial    Principal 

Trustee    Appointment   Business Affiliation

Samuel Adams   1982    Attorney 
Kirkpatrick and Lockhart 
Boston, MA

Thomas J.  Alexander  2003    Attorney  
Alexander and Femino 
Beverly, MA 

Shaikh Mohamed Al-Khalifa 2001    Exec. Director Tourist and Trade Ctr. 
        Bahrain 
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     Year of 
Initial    Principal 

Trustee    Appointment   Business Affiliation

E.  Lorraine Baugh  1991    Executive Director 
Lena Park Community Development Corp. 
Dorchester, MA 

A.  Joseph Callahan, Jr.  1986    Retired President and Treasurer 
A.J. Callahan and Son, Inc. 
Beverly Farms, MA 

Patricia A. Cook   1989    Alumna, ‘59 
Manchester, CT 

Bourke Corcoran   2002    Therapist  
        So. Shore Education Collaborative 
        Hingham, MA  

Dr. Harry K. Harutunian  1995    Superintendent of Schools 
North Andover, MA 

Virginia Warwick Judge  1986    Alumna, ’51, 
        Senior Vice President 

Honeycomb Corporation of America,  
        Inc.,  

Sarasota, Florida  

Rev. Dr. Paul Kennedy  1986    Retired Senior Pastor 
Trinity Lutheran Church 
Worcester, MA 

Lynwood J. Krischke  1987    Retired Vice President 
Morton International Specialty Group 
Aurora, IL 

Dr. George L. MacDonald, Jr. 2001    Retired Surgeon 
        Salem, MA 

Dr. Ernest N. Mannino  1987    Retired Director, Office of Overseas
        Schools 

U.S. Department of State 
Washington, D.C. 

Marietta Cashen Marsh  1991    Alumna, ‘55 
Winnetka, Illinois 
New York, NY 

John W.  Oliver      2001    Managing Director/Founder 
Oliver, Lipman & Company 
Boston, MA 

Despina Falbo Page  2002    Alumna, ‘67 
        Vice President, Kravco Co. 
        King of Prussia, PA 
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    Year of 
Initial    Principal 

Trustee    Appointment   Business Affiliation

Richard G. Post   2001    CEO, American Group 
        Vero Beach, FL 

 John E.  Riggs, III     1991    Retired Vice President 
Salem Five Cents Savings Bank 
Salem, MA 

Ernest M.  Santin   1992    Chairman, Habama Inc. 
Beverly, MA 

Jean Shanning Smock  2003    Alumna, ‘61 
        Alumni Council President 

Thomas W. Spencer  1999    Owner 
        The Spencer Company 
        Sudbury, MA 

Marjorie Mollenberg Temple 1993    Alumna, ‘60 
Assessor and Appraiser 
Medfield, MA 

William Van Loan  1999    Partner, The Heron Group 
Saint Simons Island, GA 

Anthony J. Venuti, P. E.  2003    Vice President 
        Camp, Dresser, and McKee Inc. 
        Boston, MA 

Charlene Wax   1998    Alumna, ‘82,  
        President 

Lonsdale Realty 
Ogunquit, ME 

Irene Weinstein   1993    Alumna, ‘88  
        Owner 

Globe Fish Company 
Boston, MA 

Dr. Richard E.  Wylie  1987    President 
Endicott College 
Beverly, MA 

Trustees Emeriti 

Dr. Francis C.  Gamelin  1966-88    President Emeritus 
Endicott College 1986-87 
St. Peter, Minnesota 

Herbert V.  Lindsay, Jr.  1968-87    Retired Vice President 
Worcester National County Bank 
Holden, MA 
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     Year of 
Initial    Principal 

Trustee    Appointment   Business Affiliation

 Dr. Chester A.  Myrom  1975-86    Retired Director 
Lutheran Church in America   

        Foundation 
Allentown, PA 

Howard R.  Weckerley  1970-86    Retired Vice President 
American Can Company 
Clover, South Carolina 

Administration

The President of Endicott College is charged with its administration.  Assisting the President are 
members of the President’s Council.  These officers are as follows: 

President: Dr. Richard E. Wylie has been the President of Endicott College since 1987.  He has held 
faculty positions at the University of Connecticut and Temple University and administrative positions at 
Temple University, the University of Colorado at Denver and, most recently, Lesley University, where he 
was Vice President and Dean of Graduate Programs.  Since Dr. Wylie's arrival, the College has 
undergone significant changes, among which is its conversion to a thriving four-year, coeducational 
institution with a graduate school.  He has been the leader in the development of new academic degree 
offerings and international affiliations.  Dr. Wylie received his bachelor’s degree from Plymouth State 
College and his Masters and Ed.D. in education from Boston University.  Dr. Wylie is Past-President of 
the New England Association of School and Colleges. 

Vice President of Finance: Lynne B. O'Toole has been Vice President of Finance since February 1992, 
and has 18 years of experience in higher education administration.  Previously, she was Executive 
Director of Financial Services at Quincy College in Quincy, MA.  She received a B.S. from Boston State 
College, and an MBA from the University of Massachusetts. Ms. O’Toole has been instrumental in 
developing the long-term financial discipline for the College to achieve its strategic objectives. 

Vice President and Dean of the Undergraduate College: Dr. Laura Rossi-Le, who joined the College 
in 1995, is the Vice President and Dean of the Undergraduate College. She also serves as the Dean of the 
Division of Academic Resources, which includes the Halle Library, Academic Technology, the Academic 
Support Center, the Internship Program, and the Career Center. In that role, she has been instrumental in 
developing the Endicott College Honors Program as well as the Academic Foundations Program, which 
serves international students. Laura has extensive teaching experience in the areas of writing, English 
literature, and English-as-a-Second Language.  She holds a Masters degree in English from Duke 
University and an Ed.D. in Curriculum and Instruction from Drake University. 

Vice President of Admissions and Financial Aid: Thomas J. Redman joined Endicott College as Vice 
President of Admissions and Financial Aid in 1992.  He has 33 years of experience in higher educational 
administration.  In recognition of his work with students, in 1992 he received the Distinguished Service 
Award from the Central Massachusetts School Counselors Association and, in 1995, he was named 
Massachusetts College Counselor of the Year by the New England Association of College Admissions 
Counselors.  He holds a B.A. in Business Administration from the Hiram Scott College in Nebraska, an 
M.P.A. from the University of Hartford and attended the University of Massachusetts for doctoral studies. 
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Vice President for Administration: Denise L. Bilodeau came to Endicott in 1981 to serve as Director of 
Residential Life.  Since then she has held the positions of Chief Student Affairs Officer and Dean of 
Students, Vice President of Student Development, and currently Vice President of Administration.  Ms. 
Bilodeau received a B.S. from Keene State College and has pursued advanced study in Administration 
and Supervision at Plymouth State College and Management at Lesley University. 

Vice President and Dean of the School of Graduate and Professional Studies: Dr. Paul A. Squarcia 
has been in this position since May 2002.  He has been instrumental in increasing both the enrollment and 
program offerings in the School of Graduate and Professional Studies. He has held major educational 
leadership positions throughout his 41 years in education, including twenty-three years as Superintendent 
of Schools for Silver Lake Regional School District.  In addition, Dr. Squarcia has held adjunct faculty 
positions at Bridgewater State College, Lesley University and Fitchburg State College. Dr. Squarcia holds 
a Master of Education degree from University of New Hampshire, and Education Doctorate from Boston 
College.

Vice President of Institutional Advancement: Barry A. Sullivan recently assumed the Vice President 
position, although he has been associated with Endicott since 1999 as a member of the Finance 
Committee. In 2000, he joined the Board of Trustees.  Mr. Sullivan has been charged with leading the 
institution’s fund raising initiatives.  Mr. Sullivan earned a B.S. from Merrimack College and an MBA 
from Endicott College.  Mr. Sullivan is a CPA and was previously the President of Sullivan & Co. 

Vice President for Student Development: Dr. Theodore J Chamberlain assumed responsibilities for 
Student Development in April 2004.  He received a B.A. from Gordon College, an M.A. from Gordon-
Conwell Theological Seminary, and a M. Ed. and Ed. D. from Boston College.  Prior to joining Endicott 
College, Dr. Chamberlain was Vice President of Student Development at Eastern University for 32 years. 

Faculty and Staff

The faculty of Endicott College consists of 72 full-time teaching faculty, Department Chairs and 
Associate Deans, and 166 part-time faculty.  The administration and staff employees total 206 full-time 
and 28 part-time. Full-time faculty are members of the Endicott College Faculty Association, which is a 
collective bargaining unit of the National Education Association.  The current four-year contract expires 
on August 31, 2005.  Endicott faculty do not have tenure. In recent years the faculty has grown 
significantly and the number of faculty holding doctoral degrees has increased from four in 1986 to 25 in 
2004.  Currently, 40% of the full-time teaching faculty and 62% of the Deans and Department Chairs hold 
doctoral degrees. Endicott’s faculty is committed to pedagogical experiences that address students as 
individuals.  Group discussion, hands on learning, and the expression of varied perspectives on 
educational issues characterize classroom activity in every degree program. 

Facilities

The College is located in Beverly, Massachusetts, a city with a population of approximately 
38,000 located 30 miles north of Boston.  The 200-acre oceanfront campus includes both historic and new 
structures.

 The College owns approximately 633,000 square feet of building space.  The 35 campus buildings 
include 21 residence halls, five academic/classroom facilities, an 83,000 square foot academic, 
recreational and athletic facility, two administration buildings, the President’s home, a maintenance 
building and a chapel.  Recent additions to the campus include a 53,000 square foot residence hall 
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housing 212 students completed in 2002, a 20,000 square foot Technology Center addition to the Library 
completed in 2002, and most recently, a 19,000 square foot graduate school on the South Campus. 

 Endicott’s South Campus, in addition to housing the School for Graduate and Professional 
Studies, is the site of Tupper Hall, one of the hallmark buildings on the campus.  Tupper Hall, a 
magnificent manor house on the ocean, and an adjacent building, Bierkoe Gymnasium, are being 
converted into a Conference and Professional Education Center.    Funding for this initiative is being 
provided by funds raised through The Campaign for Endicott College.  

The Project

Refinancing of Existing Debt 

 A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to refinance the College’s Series B and C 
Bonds issued by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority in 1998 and 2001, 
respectively. The Series B Bonds, with an outstanding principal amount of $8,125,000, refinanced the 
College’s Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series A, issued April 25, 1996 in the original principal amount of 
$4,700,000 and funded the construction of an 83,000 square foot academic, athletic and recreational 
facility (Post Center).  The 1996 Bonds financed building repairs and renovations, athletic facilities 
improvements, and a portion of the proceeds financed the construction of a new 26,500 square foot 
apartment-style dormitory facility (Kennedy Hall) completed in August, 1996.  The Series C Bonds, with 
an outstanding principal amount of $12,700,000, refinanced the College’s loan in the original principal 
amount of $4,700,000 from the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority, Capital Asset 
Program, Series D, refinanced the outstanding balance of a $1,000,000 conventional capital lease that 
provided 24 modular housing units, refinanced an existing $750,000 construction revolver loan that 
funded the construction of a maintenance facility, and provided $7,500,000 for the construction of a 
53,000 square foot 225 bed residence hall (Stoneridge Hall).  The MHEFA Capital Asset Program loan, 
Series D, financed the construction of a 120-bed residence hall (Endicott Hall) and refinanced a bridge 
loan with a commercial bank that was used to acquire 40-acres of land adjacent to the College.

 A portion of the Bond proceeds will also be used to refinance an existing term loan in the amount 
of $5,000,000 used for the purchase of an estate adjacent to the campus utilized for academic purposes. 

Construction of a New Residence Hall 

Bond proceeds of approximately $7,000,000 will be used to construct a 55,000 square foot, 200-
bed residence hall.  The residence hall will replace current housing on the College’s South Campus.  The 
College believes that replacement of the South Campus housing is essential for the enhancement of 
student life on campus.  The South Campus is not contiguous to the main campus and students consider it 
to be the least desirable housing at the College.  There is a much higher attrition rate for freshman living 
in South Campus residence halls than for freshman in residence halls on the main campus.  Consolidating 
the campus will better meet the needs of students while utilizing prime real estate to generate new 
revenues and opportunities.  It will provide the opportunity to convert the student housing facility on the 
South Campus to an executive lodging facility to support the planned Conference and Professional 
Education Center. 

 The new residence hall will provide an additional 110 student beds for the College, after 
replacement of the residence halls on the South Campus.  The additional beds will allow the College to 
expand its residential capacity to 1460.  As the College is currently operating at full residential capacity, 
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this will allow the College to expand overall enrollment by approximately 110 students beginning in the 
fall of 2005.

The estimated cost of construction is $9,000,000 of which $7,000,000 will be provided by Bond 
proceeds.  The remaining $2,000,000 will be provided by an equity contribution from the College. 

Student Enrollment

Full-time equivalent (FTE) student enrollment is determined by dividing the total number of 
credit hours in which students are enrolled by the credit hour load of a hypothetical “full-time” student 
(1).  FTE is generally less than total headcount, given that some students are enrolled only part-time, 
particularly in graduate and professional courses.  The following details College full time equivalent 
enrollment for the fall semester of the last five academic years for all campuses and schools within the 
College:

Fall Semester Enrollment 
Full Time Equivalent Totals  

1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04

Undergraduate 1,282 1,478 1,518 1,573 1,672

Graduate    91    135 192 262 289

Professional Development (2) 0 186 241 192 268

Total 1,356 1,513 1,663 1,823 2,014
      

(1)  Undergraduate - 16 credits = 1 FTE 
      Graduate - 9 credits = 1 FTE 

(2) See discussion under “School for Graduate and Professional Studies” 

Student Residency 

 The College has experienced significant increase in demand for on-campus housing over the past 
five years.  Not only has the number of residential students increased due to higher enrollment, but the 
percentage of students residing on campus has increased as well, as shown in the following detail: 

Fall Semester Residency 

1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04

Residential students 988 1,098 1,179 1,266 1,353

Residency rate  81.3% 82.5% 83.7% 85.5% 87.7%
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Applications and Enrollment 

 During the last five years, freshman applications have increased significantly. The College 
believes that the increase is due to initiatives in academic programs, upgrades in campus technology, 
athletic activities and facilities made during the past decade.  Selectivity has significantly improved 
throughout the period, dropping from 75.5% of first year applicants accepted for enrollment in 1999-00 to 
48.2% in 2002-03.  As of February 15, 2004, Endicott had received 2,623 applications for fall 2004, up 
from 2,178 on the same date in the prior year.  Based upon current application trends, the College 
anticipates that only 40% of applicants will be offered admission for fall 2004. 

First Year Applications, Acceptances and Enrollment 
For Fall Sem. Applications Acceptances Enrollment Selectivity Yield

1999 1,593 1,203 402 75.50% 33.40%
2000 1,830 1,280 419 69.90% 32.70%
2001 2,115 1,282 423 60.61% 32.99%
2002 2,245 1,290 488 57.46% 37.83%
2003 2,484 1,198 457 48.22% 38.15%

Change 55.93% 0% 13.68% 27.30% 4.75%

  The College has seen a rise of 64 points in the SAT scores between fall 1999 and fall 2003.  
Combined SAT average scores for first year students entering in fall 2003 was 1047.  Based upon the 
pool of admitted students for fall semester 2004, the combined SAT scores are projected by the College to 
rise by an additional 30 points. 

 Endicott continues to attract a significant number of students from New England states other than 
Massachusetts and from New York: 

Geographical Diversity of First Year Students 
State 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04
Massachusetts 38% 37% 41% 39% 43%
Connecticut 16% 15% 10% 16% 15%
Maine 6% 9% 8% 8% 5%
New Hampshire 14% 13% 13% 15% 13%
Vermont 5% 6% 7% 4% 4%
New York 
Other

7% 
14%

4% 
16%

5% 
16%

5% 
13% 

6% 
14%

From fall semester 1999 to fall semester 2003, the percentage of new resident students remained 
constant at 91%.  The increased demand for residential space has resulted in the College reaching its 
current residential capacity of 1350 residential students.  The College expects to remain in an 
oversubscribed capacity for 2004/05 and has implemented housing options for upper class students, 
including off-campus housing and release from housing requirements on an exceptional basis.  Endicott 
believes that growth in undergraduate enrollment cannot continue without additional residential capacity. 
 The Project will provide an additional 200 beds, however only 110 of these will increase capacity, as a 
residence hall on the South Campus will be vacated.  The closing of the South Campus facility will allow 
for conversion of that residence hall into executive lodging for the proposed Conference and Professional 
Education Center.  Total student residential capacity will increase to 1460 after completion of the Project. 
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 The College’s marketing strategy is designed to maintain and improve student enrollment while 
using institutional resources in a cost-effective manner. Frequently updated College publications 
communicate the special qualities of Endicott to reach a broad student population. Selected college fairs 
and secondary schools are visited in order to increase applications from pre-qualified prospective students 
while reducing expenses associated with the response to random inquiries. International marketing efforts 
and affiliations have been expanded in recent years in order to attract a student population that is more 
culturally diverse and less dependent on financial aid.

Tuition and Fees 

 The chart below summarizes tuition and room and board fees for the past five academic years.  

Annual Undergraduate Full-Time
Tuition, Room& Board Rates 

Year Tuition & 
Fees

Avg. R&B TOTAL Annual Change

2000 $     14,556 $      7,410 $  21,966 3.7% 
2001 $     15,116 $      7,698 $  22,814 3.9% 
2002   $     15,704 $      8,000 $  23,704 3.9% 
2003 $     16,460 $      8,364 $  24,824 4.7% 
2004 $     17,428 $      8,858 $  26,286 5.9% 

    

The following presents comparative tuition, fee, and room and board rates for 2003-04 for the 
private colleges in the Northeast with whom Endicott competes for students: 

Tuition, Fees and
College    State Room & Board *
Northeastern University  MA $35,668 
Bentley College   MA $35,105 
Stonehill College  MA $30,752 
Colby-Sawyer College  NH $30,720 
Quinnipiac University  CT $30,570 
Merrimack College  MA $30,536 
St. Anselm College  NH $30,400 
Suffolk University  MA $29,924 
Roger Williams University RI $29,876 
Assumption College  MA $29,375 
Salve Regina University  RI $29,210 
Western New England   MA $28,924 
Curry College   MA $27,220 
Springfield College  MA $27,070 
Endicott College  MA $26,286 

* Based upon information obtained from the Admissions Office of each listed college.
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Budget Procedures

The College’s annual budget is constructed with a top down, bottom-up philosophy. In February 
of each year, senior administration officials project enrollment and residency for the following budget 
year.  Middle level managers provide budget proposals and requests for change in funding level and/or 
staffing to their Associate Dean or area Vice President.  Capital requests are also submitted by each 
middle manager for inclusion in the institutional capital budget for the following year.  Senior 
administration reviews all budget requests and reallocates resources as appropriate to ensure adequate 
funding for all programs.  Senior administrators also review all open positions and determine additional 
staffing or position reallocations.  The preliminary budget is submitted to the President’s Council and to 
the Finance Committee for approval in April, and to the full Board of Trustees for approval in May.  The 
final budget, which incorporates final enrollment and residency, is submitted to the Board of Trustees for 
approval in October of each year.  If there is a discrepancy between projected enrollment and actual 
enrollment, budget adjustments may be necessary in October.  Such budget adjustments are done with 
input from area Vice Presidents and Associate Deans. 

Long-Term Financial Plan 

 In 1997, the Board of Trustees approved a Ten-Year Financial Plan that outlined the financial 
goals and strategies that would be necessary for the College to reach its institutional goals and ensure 
financial stability.  A Ten-Year Budget Model was developed incorporating the assumptions and 
projections included in the Financial Plan.    The key strategies of the Financial Plan are as follows: 

• Endicott is committed to maintaining modest tuition and room and board increases to maintain a 
cost of attendance advantage in the marketplace when compared to the private colleges with 
whom  Endicott College competes. 

• The College is committed to building and expanding its physical infrastructure in order to meet 
student expectations of a four-year institution.  During the period of highly successful enrollment 
and revenue growth, the College would fund as many of the capital projects as possible from 
operations, thereby keeping debt financing to a minimum. 

• Merit-based scholarships would be awarded allowing the College to successfully compete in the 
marketplace for students from middle-income families. 

• During the period of enrollment growth, additional personnel would be hired to accommodate 
the growth areas.  Salaries of faculty and staff would be increased to a level commensurate with 
levels of other similar four-year institutions. 

• Long-term financial strength will be achieved through the growth of the College’s endowment.  
This goal will be accomplished through a combination of strategies including a more aggressive 
asset allocation, elimination of draw on endowment earnings (other than as stipulated by donors), 
and annual transfer to endowment from operations.  

 The College has used the Ten-Year Budget Model as a template to guide it through this recent 
period of unprecedented growth.  The College community supports the long-term goals of the model 
recognizing that the strategic goals of the institution will only be achieved with financial discipline. 
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Investments

 The size of the College’s endowment is consistent with small, relatively young institutions.  The 
chart below details the market value of the College’s investments over the past five fiscal years.  

Market Value of Investments ($000s) at June 30, 
Investment Type 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 % Change
Short-term $530 $871 $1,055 $1,334 $543 2.5%
Common Stocks $3,062 $4,782 $4,948 $4,221 $5,441 77.7%
Bonds $2,593 $3,223 $3,495 $4,085 $4,217 62.6%
Total $6,185 $8,876 $9,498 $9,640 $10,201 64.9%
% Change -6.3% 43.5% 7.0% 1.5% 5.8% 

Gifts and Bequests

The following indicates contributions as well as new open pledges for the last four fiscal years:    

2000  2001 2002 2003

1,561,730 4,620,680 6,402,097 1,460,074 

 In conjunction with The Campaign for Endicott College, fiscal years 2001 and 2002 included 
substantial gifts and new pledges.  The decline in total giving in fiscal 2003 reflects the substantial 
completion of pledges committed at the start of the campaign.

Student Financial Aid

The College provides financial aid programs to assist applicants who do not possess sufficient 
financial resources to cover educational expenses.  Approximately 80% of students enrolled at the 
College receive some form of financial assistance.  During the academic year 2002-2003, students 
received $12,001,544 through financial aid programs.  The College offers both need-based and merit-
based institutional aid.  During 2002-03, total institutional aid amounted to $6,208,883. 

Financial assistance generally is awarded in the form of a package, which may consist of grants, 
financial or merit scholarships, loans and employment awards.  The following table includes information 
on the amount of financial assistance provided to students at the College for the last four academic years: 

     Student Financial Assistance 

1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03

College Programs $4,360,010 $4,757,177 $5,383,517 $6,208,883

Federal Programs 636,125 594,712 677,934 700,330

State Programs 264,743 416,847 370,065 318,004

Student Loans 4,285,492 4,359,550 4,603,483 4,774,327

Total $9,546,370 $10,128,286 $11,034,999 $12,001,544
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Outstanding Indebtedness

As of June 30, 2003, the College's outstanding indebtedness was as follows: (1) Massachusetts 
Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College 
Issue, Series B, with an outstanding indebtedness of $8,625,000; (2) Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series C, 
with an outstanding indebtedness of $13,180,000; and (3) a secured line of credit with $1,500,000 
outstanding.

 As of January 31, 2004, the College’s outstanding indebtedness was as follows:  (1) 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 
Endicott College Issue, Series B, with an outstanding indebtedness of $8,125,000; (2) Massachusetts 
Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College 
Issue, Series C, with an outstanding indebtedness of $12,700,000; and (3) a term loan in the amount of 
$5,000,000 for the purchase of an estate adjacent to the campus which is being utilized for academic 
programs. 

 Independent Auditors

The College’s Statements of Financial Position as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, Statements of 
Unrestricted Revenues and Expenses, Statements of Changes in Net Assets, and Statements of Cash 
Flows, for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements are included in Appendix B to this 
Official Statement, together with the report of the College's independent auditors, KPMG LLP.  

Four-Year Financial Summary 

 Statements of Unrestricted Revenues and Expenses for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2000 
through 2003 are as follows: 
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Endicott College 
Statements of Unrestricted Revenues and Expenses 

Years ended June 30, 2000 through 2003 

           2000       2001     2002                  2003   
Operating:     
   Revenues:        
      Tuition and fees   $18,253,669 $20,729,721    $24,128,076       $26,902,454 
      Less:  Scholarships and student aid   (4,492,484)        (5,032,496)     (5,712,227)         (6,516,109) 
 Tuition and fees, net    13,761,185  15,697,225 18,415,849  20,386,345 

      Contributions    1,517,430 1,588,729 810,636  1,047,939 
      Federal grants    315,392 393,687 418,063  389,040 
      Investment income    315,136  263,896  362,014  277,993 
      Other income    567,163  503,898  575,907  580,778 
      Auxiliary enterprises     7,616,502 9,130,351 10,637,404 10,630,801

 Total revenues   $24,092,808 $27,577,786    $31,219,873      $33,312,896 

Net assets released from restrictions  $701,619 $703,825  $922,244   $444,057

 Total revenues and net assets  $24,794,427 $28,281,611 $32,142,117      $33,756,953
    released from restrictions 

Expenses:
   Instruction     5,700,708  6,698,308  7,187,105  8,378,803 
   Academic support    3,390,173  3,666,950  4,382,929  4,543,926 
   Student services    2,767,090  2,998,530  3,406,053  3,636,545 
   Institutional support    3,034,065  3,885,520  4,572,023           5,495,624 
   Auxiliary enterprises    5,853,074  6,388,493  7,213,540  7,974,445

 Total expenses   $20,745,110  $23,637,801 $26,761,650       $30,029,343

 Increase in unrestricted net assets 
     from operations   $4,049,317  $4,643,810 $5,380,467 $3,727,610

Nonoperating:
   Realized & unrealized gains(losses) on 
      unrestricted investments   244,731  (663,817)  (884,976)  196,983 
   Gift of equipment                           -                  -               4,500                     - 
   Extinguishment of debt                                     -          (54,842)                -   - 
   Net loss on interest rate swap        -     (262,614)         (671,756)     (811,171) 
   Net assets released from restrictions      -               -            355,000          3,098,346

  Total nonoperating              $244,731         ($981,273)    ($1,197,232)      $2,484,158    
                                                        

Increase in unrestricted    $4,294,048  $3,662,537 $4,183,235       $6,211,768
      net assets
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Insurance

Currently, Endicott has the following insurance coverage: commercial insurance covering 
property damages, loss of income, comprehensive general liability, boiler and machinery, workers 
compensation, automobile liability, excess liability, educator's legal liability, employee dishonesty, 
foreign liability, sexual abuse coverage in children's center, sports insurance for student athletes, 
malpractice insurance for nursing students and faculty, flood insurance and employee benefits liability 
coverage.

No Litigation 

Endicott is not aware of any litigation pending or threatened wherein any unfavorable decision 
would adversely affect its ability to enter into the Loan and Trust Agreement relating to the Bonds and 
carry out its obligations thereunder or would have a material adverse impact on the financial condition of 
the College. 

ENDICOTT COLLEGE 

BY:/s/ Dr. Richard E. Wylie
 President 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Trustees 
Endicott College: 

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Endicott College (the College) as of 
June 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related statements of unrestricted revenues and expenses, changes in net 
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
College’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on 
our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the College at June 30, 2003 and 2002, and its changes in net assets and cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

September 5, 2003 

99 High Street Telephone 617 988 1000
Boston, MA 02110-2371 Fax 617 988 0800

KPMG LLP. KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is
a member of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative.



ENDICOTT COLLEGE

Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2003 and 2002

Assets 2003 2002

Cash and cash equivalents $ 580,482   193,612   
Student accounts receivable, net (note 12) 348,897   162,134   
Other accounts receivable, net 290,524   162,539   
Contributions receivable, net (note 6) 3,956,283   5,221,727   
Loans receivable, net (note 12) 1,009,297   996,464   
Deposits with bond trustees —    891,974   
Long-term investments, at market (note 7) 10,201,045   9,639,751   
Land, buildings, improvements, and equipment, net (notes 8 and 9) 60,355,709   53,803,570   
Other assets (note 14) 860,907   737,956   

Total assets $ 77,603,144   71,809,727   

Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 4,440,012   3,410,443   
Student deposits and deferred revenue 4,132,135   2,892,242   
Notes and bonds payable (note 9) 23,305,000   23,670,000   
Liability for interest rate swap (note 9) 1,745,541   934,370   
Refundable advances – U.S. Government grants 579,192   562,708   

Total liabilities 34,201,880   31,469,763   

Net assets:
Unrestricted 37,641,429   31,429,661   
Temporarily restricted (note 3) 4,170,538   7,374,611   
Permanently restricted (note 4) 1,589,297   1,535,692   

Total net assets 43,401,264   40,339,964   

Total liabilities and net assets $ 77,603,144   71,809,727   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ENDICOTT COLLEGE

Statements of Unrestricted Revenues and Expenses

Years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002

Operating:
Revenues:

Tuition and fees $ 26,902,454   24,128,076   
Less scholarships and student aid (6,516,109)  (5,712,227)  

Tuition and fees, net 20,386,345   18,415,849   

Contributions 1,047,939   810,636   
Federal and state grants 389,040   418,063   
Investment income (note 7) 277,993   362,014   
Other income 580,778   575,907   
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises 10,630,801   10,637,404   

Total revenues 33,312,896   31,219,873   

Net assets released from restrictions (note 5) 444,057   922,244   

Total revenues and net assets released from 
restrictions 33,756,953   32,142,117   

Expenses:
Instruction 8,378,803   7,187,105   
Academic support 4,543,926   4,382,929   
Student services 3,636,545   3,406,053   
Institutional support 5,495,624   4,572,023   
Auxiliary enterprises 7,974,445   7,213,540   

Total expenses 30,029,343   26,761,650   

Increase in unrestricted net assets from operations 3,727,610   5,380,467   

Nonoperating:
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on unrestricted investments 

(note 7) 196,983   (884,976)  
Gift of equipment —    4,500   
Net loss on interest rate swap agreement (note 9) (811,171)  (671,756)  
Net assets released from restrictions (note 5) 3,098,346   355,000   

Total nonoperating 2,484,158   (1,197,232)  

Increase in unrestricted net assets $ 6,211,768   4,183,235   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ENDICOTT COLLEGE

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

Years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002

Changes in unrestricted net assets:
Operating revenue $ 33,756,953   32,142,117   
Expenses (30,029,343)  (26,761,650)  
Nonoperating revenue (expense) 2,484,158   (1,197,232)  

Increase in unrestricted net assets 6,211,768   4,183,235   

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets:
Contributions 133,611   2,034,127   
Promises to give 224,919   3,440,774   
Reinvested income and losses (note 7) (20,200)  (61,155)  
Net assets released from restrictions (note 5) (3,542,403)  (1,277,244)  

(Decrease) increase in temporarily restricted net assets (3,204,073)  4,136,502   

Changes in permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions 53,605   112,060   

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 53,605   112,060   

Increase in net assets 3,061,300   8,431,797   

Net assets, beginning of year 40,339,964   31,908,167   

Net assets, end of year $ 43,401,264   40,339,964   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ENDICOTT COLLEGE

Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

2003 2002

Cash flows from operating activities:
Increase in net assets $ 3,061,300   8,431,797   
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 2,050,336   1,655,322   
Increase in liability for interest rate swap 811,171   671,756   
Donation of equipment —    (4,500)  
(Gain) loss on investment activities (174,089)  1,037,385   
Contributions for long-term investments (3,151,951)  (407,408)  
(Increase) decrease in other assets (122,951)  49,951   
(Increase) decrease in student accounts receivable (186,763)  10,770   
Decrease (Increase) in contributions receivable 1,265,444   (2,305,421)  
Increase in other accounts receivable (127,985)  (17,462)  
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 440,167   57,551   
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 1,239,893   (717,510)  

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,104,572   8,462,231   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Additions to equipment and building improvements (8,013,073)  (13,168,199)  
Purchase of investments (2,682,637)  (4,525,956)  
Proceeds from sales of investments 2,295,432   3,346,944   
Increase in loans receivable (12,833)  (47,814)  

Net cash used by investing activities (8,413,111)  (14,395,025)  

Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on long-term debt (865,000)  (635,000)  
Proceeds from short-term debt 1,500,000   1,000,000   
Payments on short-term debt (1,000,000)  (1,400,000)  
Decrease in deposits with trustees 891,974   6,418,369   
Contributions for long-term investment 3,151,951   407,408   
Increase in government grants refundable 16,484   20,106   

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,695,409   5,810,883   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 386,870   (121,911)  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 193,612   315,523   

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 580,482   193,612   

Supplemental data:
Cash paid for interest $ 1,172,585   1,116,196   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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(1) Background and History 

Endicott College (Endicott or the College) is located on a 200-acre oceanfront campus in Beverly, 
Massachusetts, 30 miles north of the City of Boston. Founded in 1939, Endicott is a private coeducational, 
not-for-profit, nonsectarian institution of higher education. In 1944, the College was approved by the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to grant the Associate in Art and Associate in Science degrees and in 
1952 received accreditation from the New England Association of Schools and Colleges. Founded as a 
two-year institution “to educate women for greater independence and an enhanced position in the 
workplace,” Endicott became a two-plus-two institution in 1988 and became a four-year coeducational 
institution in 1994. Today, all undergraduate day program students are Bachelor degree applicants. 

Endicott College seeks to provide an education built upon a combination of theory and practice, which is 
tested through internships and work experience. The College supports two major educational components: 
the Undergraduate College, and the School of Graduate and Professional Studies. 

The Undergraduate College offers Bachelor of Fine Arts, Bachelor of Arts, and Bachelor of Science 
degrees. Day program enrollment as of September 1, 2002 was approximately 1,500 students, with another 
120 students enrolled in Madrid, Spain and Mexico City, Mexico. Over 85% of the full-time day students 
lived on campus. 

The School of Graduate and Professional Studies grants Associate of Arts, Associate of Science, Bachelor 
of Arts, Bachelor of Science, Master in Education and Master in Business Administration degrees.  
Enrollment in the School of Graduate and Professional students, including programs in Mexico City, 
Mexico, was 465 students as of September 1, 2002. In addition to degree programs, professional 
development programs and consulting are offered through the Center for Leadership. 

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Statement Presentation 

The accompanying financial statements, which are presented on the accrual basis of accounting, have 
been prepared to focus on the College as a whole and to present balances and transactions according 
to the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 

Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

• Permanently restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they 
be maintained in perpetuity by the College. Generally, the donors of these assets permit the 
College to use all or part of the income earned and capital gains, if any, on related investments 
for general or specific purposes. 

• Temporarily restricted net assets – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may 
or will be met by actions of the College and/or the passage of time. 

• Unrestricted net assets – Net assets not subject to donor-imposed stipulations. 

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assets is limited 
by donor-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains 
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and losses on investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in 
unrestricted net assets unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or law. Expirations 
of temporary restrictions on net assets, that is, the donor-imposed stipulated purpose has been 
accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed, are reported as reclassifications between 
the applicable classes of net assets. 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period 
received. Contributions and endowment income subject to donor-imposed stipulations that are met in 
the same reporting period are reported as unrestricted support. Promises to give that are scheduled to 
be received after the balance sheet date are shown as increases in temporarily restricted net assets 
and are reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the purpose or time restrictions are met. Promises 
to give subject to donor-imposed stipulations that the corpus be maintained permanently are 
recognized as increases in permanently restricted net assets. Conditional promises to give are not 
recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend are 
substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. 
Contributions to be received after one year are discounted at the appropriate rate commensurate with 
the risks involved. Amortization of the discount is recorded as additional contribution revenue in 
accordance with the donor-imposed restrictions, if any, on the contributions. 

The College reports contributions of land, buildings, or equipment as unrestricted nonoperating 
support unless the donor places restrictions on their use. Contributions of cash or other assets that 
must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as unrestricted nonoperating support, provided 
the long-lived assets are placed in service in the same reporting period; otherwise, the contributions 
are reported as temporarily restricted support until the assets are acquired and placed in service. 

Dividends, interest, and net gains (losses) on investments are reported as follows: 

• as increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the gift require that they be 
added to the principal of a permanent endowment fund; 

• as increases (decreases) in temporarily restricted net assets if the terms of the gift impose 
restrictions on the current use of the income or net gains; and 

• as increases (decreases) in unrestricted net assets in all other cases. 

(b) Operations 

The statement of unrestricted revenues and expenses reports the change in unrestricted net assets 
from operating and nonoperating activities. Operating revenues consist of those items attributable to 
the College’s undergraduate and graduate programs. Endowment activities relating to the College’s 
unrestricted investments are reported as nonoperating revenue. 

Expenses associated with the operation and maintenance of College plant assets, including interest 
and depreciation expense, are allocated on the basis of square footage utilized by the functional 
categories.
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Expenses associated with fundraising activities of the College were $688,566 and $554,266 in 2003 
and 2002, respectively, which are included principally in institutional support in the statements of 
unrestricted revenues and expenses. 

(c) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, the College considers cash equivalents as 
investments with maturities at date of purchase of three months or less. 

(e) Long-Term Investments 

Investments, principally common stocks and bonds, are carried at fair market value. 

(f) Land, Buildings, Improvements, and Equipment 

Land, buildings, improvements, and equipment are stated at cost, except for donated assets, which 
are recorded at fair market value at the date of gift. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line 
method over the related assets’ estimated useful economic lives. When assets are retired or otherwise 
disposed of, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any 
resulting gain or loss is recognized. 

(g) Bond Issue Costs 

Bond issue costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the life of the associated bond 
issue.

(h) Student Deposits and Deferred Revenue 

Student deposits, along with advance payments for tuition, room, and board related to the next 
semester, have been deferred and will be reported as unrestricted as earned. During 1998, the 
College obtained an investment from its food service vendor of $500,000, which will be recognized 
as income according to a predetermined schedule not to exceed ten years. In addition, in March 
2003, the College entered into an agreement with a conference center management company to 
manage its conference center operations, commencing in fiscal 2004. The company agreed to invest 
$700,000 for renovations, of which $350,000 had been received at June 30, 2003. The investment 
will be recognized as income according to a predetermined schedule over ten years. 

On June 14, 1999, the College entered into a 99-year ground lease with The Children’s Montessori 
School for 9.4 acres of College land. In June 2001, the tenant completed the construction of a school 
on the land for education of children in grades kindergarten through 8th grade. The school will 
provide internships for Endicott College students in the Education Department. The College has 
received an initial $50,000 nonrefundable deposit, and an additional payment of $560,000 was 
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received in October 2000. The College will receive an annual payment of $1 on June 1st of each year 
thereafter. The $610,000 has been deferred and will be taken into income pro rata over the term of 
the lease. 

(i) Tax Status 

The College is a tax-exempt organization as described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code and is generally exempt from income taxes pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. 

(j) Campaign for Endicott College 

In the spring of 2001, the College publicly announced the Campaign for Endicott College, the first 
capital campaign effort in Endicott’s history, with a goal of $15 million. The campaign has five 
primary objectives: (1) the construction of a library addition, (2) the conversion of the South Campus 
into a graduate school and a conferencing/learning center, (3) the construction of additional 
residence halls, (4) faculty research and development, and (5) increasing the endowment. 

(3) Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2003 2002

Gifts restricted as to purpose:
General purposes $ 5,232   6,585  
Single Parent Program 81,000   —    
Center for Nursing Education 43,000   —    
Scholarships 48,492   46,971  
Conference Center —    1,923,592  
Graduate and Professional Studies Center —    100,050  

Total gifts restricted as to purpose 177,724   2,077,198   

Long-term investment gains and unspent long-term 
investment income:

Scholarships —    1,440  
Handicapped programs —    11,051  
Endowed chair 52,380   79,045  

Total long-term investment gains
 and unspent income 52,380   91,536  

Time restrictions:
General purposes 1,814,620   2,317,620  
Single Parent Program 190,528   —    
Library addition —    113,166  
Conference Center 1,935,286   2,775,091  

Total time restrictions 3,940,434   5,205,877   



ENDICOTT COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2003 and 2002 

 10 (Continued) 

Unspent long-term investment gains are classified as temporarily restricted until the College appropriates 
and spends such sums in accordance with the terms of the underlying endowment funds, at which time they 
will be reclassified as unrestricted revenues. 

(4) Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following at June 30: 

2003 2002

Permanently restricted funds for which the income 
is restricted:

Handicapped programs $ 940,000   940,000  
Scholarship 649,297   595,692  

$ 1,589,297   1,535,692   

(5) Net Assets Released From Restrictions 

Net assets released from temporary donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the restricted 
purposes or by occurrence of events specified by the donors were as follows: 

2003 2002

Scholarship $ 14,905   72,830   
Library 113,166   355,000  
Graduate & Professional Studies Center 100,050   —    
Conference Center 2,885,130   —    
Handicapped programs 11,051   60,706  
General purposes 418,101   788,708  

3,542,403   1,277,244   

(6) Contributions Receivable 

Contributions receivable consisted of the following at June 30: 

2003 2002

Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 2,879,221   1,660,337  
One year to five years 1,530,456   4,181,390  
Five years and thereafter 246,606   80,000  

4,656,283   5,921,727   
Less present value discount and allowance for 

uncollectible pledges (700,000)  (700,000)  

$ 3,956,283   5,221,727   
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(7) Investment Activities 

The College’s investments are summarized as follows at June 30: 

2003 2002
Market Cost Market Cost

Short-term investments $ 543,202  544,567  1,333,749  1,333,997  
Common stocks 5,441,321 5,308,141 4,221,434  4,832,713
Bonds 4,216,522 3,802,491 4,084,568  3,899,168

$ 10,201,045  9,655,199  9,639,751  10,065,878  

Total investment return consisted of the following for the years ended June 30: 

2003 2002

Investment return:
Interest and dividends $ 280,687   453,268  
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) 174,089   (1,037,385)  

Total return on investments $ 454,776   (584,117)  

(8) Land, Buildings, Improvements, and Equipment 

The College’s investment in plant at June 30 is as follows: 

Estimated
lives 2003 2002

Land — $ 2,626,095   2,626,095   
Construction in process — 7,649,043   9,084,984  
Buildings and land improvements 50 years 56,785,785   47,713,140  
Furniture, equipment, and books 3-10 years 6,214,218   5,567,469  
Motor vehicles and similar assets 3 years 254,754   194,475  

73,529,895   65,186,163   

Less accumulated depreciation (13,174,186)  (11,382,593)  

$ 60,355,709   53,803,570   

Depreciation expense charged to operations was $2,050,336 and $1,655,322 in 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. Net interest in the amount of $0 and $214,000 was capitalized to construction in progress for 
the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 
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(9) Bonds and Notes Payable 

(a) Bonds Payable 

On May 11, 1998, the College entered into an agreement with the Massachusetts Health and 
Educational Facilities Authority (MHEFA) for $10,225,000 in Variable Rate Demand Revenue 
Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series B, which mature October 1, 2018. The bonds are collateralized 
by a letter of credit for the entire amount of principal and interest due MHEFA. The letter of credit is 
collateralized by first mortgages on real property of the College and security interests in fixtures and 
equipment in such properties. Annually, the College pays .9% of outstanding principal for the letter 
of credit fee. 

On April 25, 2001, the College entered into an agreement with MHEFA for $13,880,000 in Variable 
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series C, which mature October 1, 2031. The 
bonds are collateralized by a letter of credit for the entire amount of principal and interest due 
MHEFA. The letter of credit is collateralized by first mortgages on real property of the College and 
security interests in fixtures and equipment in such properties. Annually, the College pays .9% of 
outstanding principal for the letter of credit fee.

The scheduled principal payments required by the bonds payable for the following years are as 
follows:

Principal

Year ending June 30:
2004 $ 980,000   
2005 1,000,000   
2006 770,000   
2007 775,000   
2008 785,000   
2009 and thereafter 17,495,000   

$ 21,805,000   

In conjunction with the College’s 1998 and 2001 issuances of variable rate debt, the College entered 
into interest rate swap agreements with a financial institution counterparty. The purpose of the 
agreements were to swap the variable rate on the underlying debt for a fixed rate of 4.45% and 
3.98% for the 1998 and 2001 issues, respectively, for seven years and five years, respectively, and 
not for any speculative purposes. In October 2002, an amendment to the swap agreement for the 
1998 issue reduced the rate to 4.25% and extended the termination date to October 1, 2008. A 
November 2002 amendment to the swap agreement for the 2001 issue reduced the rate to 3.95% and 
extended the termination date to April 1, 2008. Under SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative 

Instruments and Hedging Activities, the instrument’s fair value and changes therein must be included 
in the College’s financial statements. The value of the swap instruments, which is recorded as a 
liability ($1,745,541 at June 30, 2003 and $934,370 at June 30, 2002), represents the estimated cost 
to the College to cancel the agreement at each reporting date and is based on pricing models that 
consider interest rates and other market factors. Interest rate volatility, remaining outstanding 



ENDICOTT COLLEGE 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2003 and 2002 

 13 (Continued) 

principal, and time to maturity will affect the swaps’ fair value at subsequent reporting dates. If the 
College repays the debt on schedule, the value of each swap will reach zero at its final maturity. 

(b) Notes Payable 

In January 2003, the College amended its loan agreement with Fleet National Bank for a $1,500,000 
secured line of credit, extending the expiration date to January 29, 2004. The College has the option 
of electing interest at prime minus 1% or borrowing as a LIBOR rate loan. The line of credit is 
secured by the College’s investments in an amount sufficient to cover 111% of the line of credit 
commitment to be held at the bank. The amounts outstanding under the line of credit agreement were 
$1,500,000 and $1,000,000 at prime minus 1% at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Interest expense charged to operations was $1,140,257 and $997,945 in 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

(10) Leases 

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating equipment leases as of June 30, 2003 are 
as follows: 

2004 $ 147,658   
2005 106,578   
2006 18,933   

Rent expense was $362,121 and $418,965 in 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

(11) Pension Plan 

All full-time personnel are covered by the Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association/College 
Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA/CREF) professional retirement plan, a defined contribution plan. The 
College incurred pension expense under this plan of $841,624 and $702,050 for the years ended June 30, 
2003 and 2002, respectively. 

(12) Accounts Receivable and Loans Receivable 

Student accounts receivable are net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $156,554 and $114,664 at 
June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. 

Loans receivable are net of an allowance for uncollectible loans of $57,124 at June 30, 2003 and 2002. 

(13) Disclosure About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

In accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, Disclosures

About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments, the College determined the estimated fair values of its 
financial instruments as of June 30, 2003 by using, where practicable, appropriate valuation 
methodologies. 
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The College has determined that the estimated fair value of its total indebtedness was equivalent to its net 
carrying value as of June 30, 2003 and 2002. The College further determined that the differences between 
the carrying values and estimated fair values of its other financial assets and liabilities at June 30, 2003 
were not material. 

(14) Subsequent Events 

On April 25, 2003, the College executed a purchase and sale agreement in the amount of $5.9 million for 
an adjacent 4.5 acre estate, with a closing date of July 31, 2003. The property will be financed with a 
$5 million loan at an interest rate of LIBOR +2% over a period of five years. As of June 30, 2003, the 
College had paid a deposit in the amount of $177,000. 

On July 14, 2003, Endicott College amended its loan agreement with Fleet National Bank for an increase 
of $1 million in its line of credit, bringing the total line of credit to $2.5 million. 
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APPENDIX C-1 

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS 

 In addition to terms defined elsewhere in the Agreement, the following terms have the following meanings 
in the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of April 20, 2004 (the “Agreement”) among the Authority, the Institution 
and the Trustee, unless the context otherwise requires: 

 “Act” means Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time. 

 “Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank” means the Bank shall become insolvent or fail to pay its debts generally 
as such debts become due or shall admit in writing its inability to pay any of its indebtedness or shall consent to or 
petition for or apply to any authority for the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, trustee or similar official for itself 
or for all or any substantial part of its properties or assets or any such trustee, receiver, liquidator or similar official 
is otherwise appointed or insolvency, reorganization, arrangement or liquidation proceedings (or similar 
proceedings) shall be instituted by or against the Bank. 

 “Authorized Officer” means:  (i) in the case of the Authority, the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive 
Director, Director of Financing Programs or Director of Finance, and when used with reference to an act or 
document of the Authority also means any other person authorized to perform the act or execute the document; and 
(ii) in the case of the Institution, the Chairman or other presiding officer of the Board of Trustees, the President or 
other chief executive or administrative officer, any Vice President or Vice Chairman, the Treasurer or other chief 
financial officer or any Assistant Treasurer, and when used with reference to an act or document of the Institution, 
also means any other person authorized to perform the act or execute the document. 

 “Bank” means Fleet National Bank in its capacity as issuer of the Letter of Credit, and any other issuer of a 
Credit Facility. 

 “Bond Counsel” means any attorney at law or firm of attorneys selected by the Authority, of nationally 
recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds issued by states and 
political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state of the United States, 
which may include counsel for the Institution. 

 “Bond Fund” means the fund established pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Bond Year” means each one year period (or shorter period from the date of issue of a series of Bonds) 
ending on September 30. 

 “Bondowners” or “Owners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to time as shown in the 
books kept by the Trustee as bond registrar and transfer agent. 

 “Bonds” means the $33,625,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate 
Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, Series D (2004), dated the date of their original delivery, and any 
Bond or Bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor. 

 “Business Day” means any day (i) that is not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday, (ii) on which banks are 
not required or authorized to close in New York, New York or Boston, Massachusetts, (iii) on which banking 
institutions in each of the cities in which the offices of the Trustee and, if applicable, the Remarketing Agent and the 
Bank (and the office of the Bank specified for draws under the Letter of Credit) are located are not required or 
authorized to remain closed and (iv) on which the New York Stock Exchange is not closed. 

 “Commonwealth” means The Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

 “Credit Facility” means the Letter of Credit and any substitute irrevocable transferable direct-pay letter of 
credit, insurance policy, surety bond, line of credit or other instrument delivered to the Trustee pursuant to the 
Agreement and then in effect. 
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 “Default” has the meaning given such term in the Agreement as set forth in Appendix C-2 to this Official 
Statement. 

 “Delivery Date” means, with respect to a Bond tendered for purchase, the Purchase Date or any subsequent 
Business Day on which such Bond is delivered to the Trustee as provided in the form of Weekly Bond in the 
Agreement. 

 “Effective Date” means, with respect to a Bond in the Weekly Mode, the date on which a new Rate Period 
for that Bond takes effect.  The Effective Date shall be each Wednesday. 

 “Effective Rate” is defined in the form of Weekly Bond in the Agreement. 

 “Eligible Funds” means (i) amounts drawn on any Credit Facility; (ii) amounts paid to the Trustee pursuant 
to the Agreement which have been held by it for a period of at least 123 days during which no Event of Bankruptcy 
has occurred and which have been commingled only with other Eligible Funds; (iii) amounts which if applied to the 
payment of the Bonds would not, in the opinion of nationally recognized counsel experienced in bankruptcy matters 
selected by the Institution and satisfactory to the Trustee, be subject to avoidance as a preference under the United 
States Bankruptcy Code upon an Event of Bankruptcy; and (iv) income derived from investment of the foregoing. 

 “Event of Bankruptcy” means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy or the commencement of a proceeding 
under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable law concerning insolvency, reorganization or 
bankruptcy by or against the Institution, any affiliates thereof, any guarantor of the Bonds (other than the Bank) or 
the Authority, as debtor. 

 “Event of Default” has the meaning given such term in the Agreement as set forth in Appendix C-2 to this 
Official Statement. 

 “First Optional Redemption Date” means the anniversary of the Fixed Rate Conversion Date in the year 
which is the number of years after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date equal to the number of years between the Fixed 
Rate Conversion Date and the maturity date multiplied by one-half (1/2) and rounded up to the nearest whole 
number; provided, however, that Bonds shall not be subject to optional redemption if the period between the Fixed 
Rate Conversion Date and their maturity date is less than ten years. 

 “Fixed Rate” means a rate or rates of interest on the Bonds that is fixed for the remaining term of the 
Bonds.

 “Fixed Rate Conversion Date” or “Conversion Date” means the date upon which the Fixed Rate first 
becomes effective for the Bonds. 

 “Fixed Rate Mode” has the meaning set forth in the form of Fixed Rate Bond in the Agreement. 

 “Government or Equivalent Obligations” means (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States; 
(ii) certificates evidencing ownership of the right to the payment of the principal of and interest on obligations 
described in clause (i), provided that such obligations are held in the custody of a bank or trust company satisfactory 
to the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in a special account separate from the general assets of such 
custodian; (iii) bonds or other obligations of any state of the United States of America or of any agency, 
instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such state (A) which are not callable at the option of the obligor or 
otherwise prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable notice has been given by the obligor to call such bonds or 
obligations on the date specified in the notice, (B) which are fully secured as to principal and interest and 
redemption premium, if any, by a fund consisting only of cash or bonds or other obligations of the character 
described in clause (i) or (ii) which fund may be applied only to the payment when due of interest, principal of and 
redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified 
redemption date or dates pursuant to such irrevocable instructions, as appropriate, and (C) as to which the principal 
of and interest on the bonds and obligations of the character described in clause (i) or (ii), as the case may be, which 
have been deposited in such fund on deposit in such fund is sufficient to pay interest when due, principal of and 
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redemption premium, if any, on the bonds or other obligations described in this clause (iii) on the maturity date or 
dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in subclause (A) 
of this clause (iii), as appropriate; and (iv) any open-end or closed-end management type investment company or 
trust registered under 15 U.S.C. §80(a)-1 et seq., provided that the portfolio of such investment company or trust is 
limited to obligations described in clause (i) and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations, and 
provided further that such investment company or trust shall take custody of such collateral either directly or 
through a custodian satisfactory to the Trustee or the Authority. 

 “Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward, or other hedging agreement, 
arrangement or security, however denominated, expressly identified pursuant to its terms as being entered into in 
connection with and in order to hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of any Indebtedness, and with a 
counterparty which is rated at least “A” by Moody’s or S&P. 

 “Indebtedness” shall mean all obligations of the Institution for borrowed money, or installment sale and 
capitalized lease obligations, incurred or assumed, including guaranties, long-term Indebtedness, short-term 
Indebtedness, subordinated Indebtedness or any other obligation of the Institution for payments of principal and 
interest with respect to money borrowed. 

 “Institution Bond” means any Bond registered to the Institution pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Interest Index” means that indication of the lowest interest rate appropriate for bonds similar to the Bonds 
being priced in terms of security, creditworthiness, term and tender privilege which will permit the Bonds to be sold 
at a purchase price equal (excluding accrued interest) to their principal amount determined first by interviewing 
three investors of portfolios holding significant numbers of such bonds (but who are not Bondowners) and second, if 
that is not practicable, by referring to an available database or publication of national recognition containing a recent 
calculation of such an interest rate for comparable securities. 

 “Interest Payment Date” means each date on which interest shall be payable on the Bonds according to 
their terms so long as any of the Bonds shall be Outstanding.  While the Bonds bear interest in the Weekly Mode, 
the Interest Payment Date shall be the first Business Day of each calendar month commencing June 1, 2004; from 
and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, the Interest Payment Date shall be the first day of April and October of 
each year, commencing with an April 1 or October 1 which is at least two but less than eight months after the Fixed 
Rate Conversion Date; and, as to any Bond, the maturity date or redemption date thereof.  Notwithstanding anything 
in the Agreement to the contrary, the maturity date of any Bond shall be deemed to be an Interest Payment Date. 

 “IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended and applied to the Bonds from 
time to time. 

 “Letter of Credit” means the irrevocable letter of credit issued by Fleet National Bank, for the benefit of the 
Trustee.

 “Maximum Interest Rate” means the maximum interest rate on Bonds in the Weekly Mode, which rate is 
initially 10%  per annum.  The Maximum Interest Rate may be increased or decreased at any time by the Institution 
by filing with the Authority and the Trustee a certificate stating the new Maximum Interest Rate.  In no event shall 
an increase in the Maximum Interest Rate be permitted to cause the amount entitled to be drawn under a Credit 
Facility to be less than the minimum required amount specified in the Agreement. 

 “Mode” means the period for and the manner in which the interest rates on the Bonds are set and includes 
the Weekly Mode and the Fixed Rate Mode. 

 “Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the matter or action in 
question will not have an adverse impact on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes. 

 “Outstanding,” when used to modify Bonds, refers to Bonds issued under the Agreement, excluding:  (i) 
Bonds which have been exchanged or replaced or delivered to the Trustee for credit against a principal payment or 
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sinking fund installment; (ii) Bonds which have been paid; (iii) Bonds which have become due and for the payment 
of which moneys have been duly provided; (iv) Bonds deemed tendered for purchase and not delivered to the 
Trustee on the Purchase Date, provided sufficient funds for payment of the Purchase Price are on deposit with the 
Trustee; and (v) Bonds for which there have been irrevocably set aside sufficient funds or Government or Equivalent 
Obligations described in clause (i) or (ii) of the definition thereof bearing interest at such rates, and with such 
maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay or redeem them; provided, however, that if any such Bonds are to 
be redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority shall have taken all action necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice 
of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in accordance with the Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to 
mail shall have been given to the Trustee. 

 “Permitted Investments” means (A) Government or Equivalent Obligations, (B) “tax exempt bonds” as 
defined in IRC §150(a)(6), other than “specified private activity bonds” as defined in IRC §57(a)(5)(C), rated at 
least AA or Aa by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, or the equivalent by any other nationally recognized rating 
agency, at the time of acquisition thereof or shares of a so-called money market or mutual fund that do not constitute 
“investment property” within the meaning of IRC §148(b)(2), provided either that the fund has all of its assets 
invested in obligations of such rating quality or, if such obligations are not so rated, that the fund has comparable 
creditworthiness through insurance or otherwise and which fund is rated AAm or AAm-G if rated by S&P, (C) 
certificates of deposit of, banker’s acceptances drawn on and accepted by, and interest bearing deposit accounts of, a 
bank or trust company which has a capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000, (D) Repurchase Agreements (as 
defined below), (E) money market funds rated at least AAm or AAm-G by S&P, (F) investment agreements with a 
provider rated at least AA- and Aa3 by S&P or Moody’s, (G) commercial paper which is rated at the time of 
purchase A-1+ by S&P and P-1 by Moody’s and which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase, 
and (H) provided the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, any other investment permitted by the Bank.  The 
term “Repurchase Agreement” shall mean a written agreement under which a bank or trust company which has a 
capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000 or a government bond dealer reporting to, trading with, and 
recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York sells to, and agrees to repurchase from the 
Authority or the Trustee obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States; provided that the market value of 
such obligations is at the time of entering into the agreement at least one hundred and three percent (103%) of the 
repurchase price specified in the agreement and that such obligations are segregated from the unencumbered assets 
of such bank or trust company or government bond dealer; and provided further that unless the agreement is with a 
bank or trust company, such agreement shall require the repurchase to occur on demand or on a date certain which is 
not later than one (1) year after such agreement is entered into and shall expressly authorize the Trustee or the 
Authority, as the case may be, to liquidate the purchased obligations in the event of the insolvency of the party 
required to repurchase such obligations or the commencement against such party of a case under the federal 
Bankruptcy Code or the appointment of or taking possession by a trustee or custodian in a case against such party 
under the Bankruptcy Code. 

 “Pledged Bond” means any Bond purchased with proceeds provided by the Credit Facility which is 
registered to the Bank or its designee pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Principal Payment Date” means the day on which principal shall be payable on the Bonds according to 
their terms so long as any of such Bonds shall be Outstanding. 

 “Project” means the acquisition of land, site development, construction or alteration of buildings or the 
acquisition or installation of furnishings and equipment, or any combination of the foregoing, in connection with the 
following:

 Existing Part of the Project:  (a) the project financed and refinanced with the proceeds of the 
Series C Bonds, which consisted of (i) the construction of a new 120-bed residence hall and the acquisition 
of 40 acres of land adjacent to the Institution’s main campus, (ii) the construction of 24 modular housing 
units, (iii) the construction of a maintenance facility and (iv) the construction of a new, approximately 
55,000 square foot, 220-bed residence hall; (b) the project financed and refinanced with the proceeds of the 
Series B Bonds, which consisted of (i) various building, plant and grounds improvements including 
dormitory repairs, roof and building repairs, administrative and faculty office renovations, energy 
conservation improvements and athletic program facilities improvements; various interior renovations 
including electrical system upgrading, campus re-cabling and telephone/fire/alarm security system 
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upgrading and the acquisition of academic and administrative equipment including computers on the 
campus of the Institution, (ii) the construction of ten and one half (10 ½) units of dormitory townhouses, 
(iii) the construction of an approximately 26,500 square foot apartment style dormitory facility with 
approximately 24 suites to house 105 beds on the campus of the Institution and (iv) the construction and 
equipping of an approximately 83,000 square foot sports science and fitness center containing a 
gymnasium, locker rooms, fitness area and sports science classrooms; and (c) the acquisition of a 21-room 
house located at 407 Hale Street adjacent to the main campus of the Institution and which was originally 
financed in part with the proceeds of a term loan from Fleet National Bank; and 

 New Part of the Project:  the construction of a new, approximately 200-bed residence hall and a 
new, approximately 100-space parking lot to be located on the main campus of the Institution. 

The word “Project” also refers to the facilities which result or have resulted from the foregoing activities.  The scope 
of the Project may be increased or decreased with the written consent of the Authority and the Bank upon 
certification by the Project Officer on behalf of the Institution describing the change, estimating the resulting 
increase or decrease in the cost of the Project and stating:  that the amendment will not cause the Project to violate 
any applicable building, zoning, land use, environmental protection, historical, sanitary, safety or educational laws, 
rules and regulations or applicable grant, reimbursement or insurance requirements or the provisions of the 
Agreement; as to any portion to which the amendment relates and which is exempt by reason of its cost being not 
more than the amount exempted by statute, that the amendment is not expected to increase its cost beyond that 
amount.  The signers of the certificate may rely, as to conclusions of law, on an opinion of counsel furnished to the 
Authority and referred to in the certificate.  The Authority and the Bank may waive any provision required to be 
contained in the certificate upon advice of counsel that the waiver does not adversely affect the security for the 
Bonds.  The scope of the Project may be increased only upon receipt by the Authority of an Opinion of Bond 
Counsel regarding the increase in scope. 

 “Project Costs” means the costs of issuing the Bonds and carrying out the Project, including repayment of 
external loans and internal advances for the same to the extent permitted by the Agreement and the Tax Certificate, 
working capital expenditures directly related to the Project, and interest prior to, during and for up to one year after 
construction is substantially complete, but excluding general administrative expenses, overhead of the Institution 
and interest on internal advances. 

 “Project Officer” means the Vice President of Finance of the Institution or an alternate or successor 
appointed by the Institution. 

 “Purchase Date” means, while the Bonds are in a Weekly Mode, the date on which Bonds shall be required 
to be purchased pursuant to a mandatory or optional tender in accordance with the provisions in the form of Weekly 
Rate Bonds in the Agreement. 

 “Purchase Price” shall have the meaning set forth in the form of Weekly Rate Bonds in the Agreement. 

 “Rate Period” or “Period” means, when used with respect to any particular rate of interest for a Bond in the 
Weekly Mode, the period during which such rate of interest determined for such Bond will remain in effect as 
described in the Agreement.  While the Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, a new interest rate will take place on each 
Effective Date. 

 “Rebate Year” means the one year period (or shorter period beginning on the date of issue) ending on June 
30.

 “Reimbursement Agreement” means (a) the Letter of Credit and Reimbursement Agreement between the 
Bank and the Institution and any amendments and supplements thereto and (b) any letter of credit agreement or 
reimbursement agreement by and between the Institution and any substitute Bank, and any amendments and 
supplements thereto. 
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 “Remarketing Agent” means Quick & Reilly, Inc., in its capacity as remarketing agent under the 
Remarketing Agreement, its successors and assigns. 

 “Remarketing Agreement” means the Remarketing Agreement among the Institution, the Trustee and the 
Remarketing Agent, as the same may be amended or supplemented from time to time. 

 “S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services or any of its successors or assigns or, if S&P is no 
longer rating the Bonds, any other national recognized securities rating agency designated by the Institution and 
reasonably acceptable to the Trustee. 

 “Series B Bonds” means the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, 
Series B, dated May 14, 1998 and issued in the original principal amount of $10,225,000. 

 “Series C Bonds” means the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College Issue, 
Series C, dated April 25, 2001 and issued in the original principal amount of $13,880,000. 

 “Tax Certificate” means the Tax Certificate and Agreement between the Authority and the Institution dated 
the date of original issuance of the Bonds. 

 “Tendered Bond” means any Bond tendered or deemed tendered for purchase pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee under the Agreement and its successors in such 
capacity.

 “UCC” means the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code. 

 “Weekly Mode” means a Period with respect to the Bonds which is a one week (or slightly shorter or 
longer) period which commences on Wednesday of one calendar week and ends on the following Tuesday. 

 “Weekly Rate” means the rate of interest determined by the Remarketing Agent for each Rate Period to be 
the lowest rate which in its judgment, on the basis of prevailing financial market conditions, would permit the sale of 
the Bonds in the Weekly Mode at par plus accrued interest on and as of the Effective Date, but not in excess of the 
Maximum Interest Rate. 

 Words importing persons include firms, associations and corporations, and the singular and plural form of 
words shall be deemed interchangeable wherever appropriate. 
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SUMMARY OF LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT 

The following is a brief summary, prepared by Palmer & Dodge LLP, bond counsel, of certain provisions 
of the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of April 20, 2004 (the “Agreement”), pertaining to the Bonds and the 
Project.  This summary does not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Agreement for full and 
complete statements of such and all provisions. 

 The Agreement provides for the following transactions:  (i) the Authority’s issue of the Bonds; (ii) the 
Authority’s loan of the proceeds of the Bonds to the Institution to finance and refinance the Project; (iii) the 
Institution’s repayment of the loan from the Authority through payment to the Trustee of all amounts necessary to 
pay the Bonds; and (iv) the Authority’s assignment to the Trustee in trust for the benefit and security of the 
Bondowners of the Authority’s rights with respect to the loan to the Institution under the Agreement, including 
repayment of the loan to be received from the Institution.  As additional security for its obligations to make 
payments to the Bond Fund and the Construction Fund, and for its other payment obligations under the Agreement, 
the Institution grants to the Trustee with respect to the Bond Fund, and to the Authority with respect to the Expense 
Fund and the Construction Fund, a security interest in its interest in the moneys and other investments and any 
proceeds thereof held from time to time in such Funds established under the Agreement. 

Establishment of Funds

 The Agreement creates two funds to be held by the Trustee, the Bond Fund and the Rebate Fund, and two 
funds to be held by the Authority, the Expense Fund and the Construction Fund.  (Sections 303, 304, 305 and 401) 

Bond Fund and Debt Service

 The Bond Fund is established under the Agreement for the payment of debt service on the Bonds.  The 
Institution grants to the Trustee for the benefit of the Bondowners and the Bank a security interest in all deposits in 
the Bond Fund.  The moneys in the Bond Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust 
and, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Trustee solely to pay principal, purchase 
price of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds.  While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the 
Institution shall make payments in immediately available funds to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund on each 
Interest Payment Date in an amount equal to the interest payment then coming due on such Bonds.  While the Bonds 
are supported by a Credit Facility, on each Principal Payment Date, the Institution shall deposit in the Bond Fund an 
amount equal to the principal next or then coming due on the Bonds (including principal coming due by scheduled 
mandatory redemption pursuant to the Agreement).  At any time when any principal of the Bonds is overdue, the 
Institution shall also have a continuing obligation to pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund an amount 
equal to interest on the overdue principal but the payments described under this heading shall not otherwise bear 
interest.  Redemption premiums shall not bear interest. 

 To the extent permitted by law, the obligation of the Institution to make payments to the Authority and the 
Trustee under the Agreement shall be absolute and unconditional, shall be binding and enforceable in all 
circumstances whatsoever, shall not be subject to setoff, recoupment or counterclaim and shall be a general 
obligation of the Institution to which the full faith and credit of the Institution are pledged.  (Sections 303, 307 and 
308) 

Construction Fund

 Moneys in the Construction Fund shall be applied by the Authority to the payment or reimbursement of 
Project Costs (excluding the costs of issuing the Bonds) or to make deposits to the Rebate Fund.  Moneys may be 
disbursed from the Construction Fund upon receipt by the Authority of a written requisition therefor, approved in 
writing by the Bank, certified by a Project Officer and upon satisfaction of other requirements set forth in the 
Agreement. 

 After the completion of the Project any moneys remaining in the Construction Fund will be transferred to 
the Bond Fund and used to pay debt service or redeem Bonds. 
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 In the event the unpaid principal amount of the Bonds is accelerated upon the occurrence of an Event of 
Default, the balance in the Construction Fund will be transferred to the Bond Fund.  (Section 401) 

Expense Fund

 Moneys in the Expense Fund shall be applied by the Authority at the written direction of the Institution to 
the payment or reimbursement of the costs of issuing the Bonds, including the reasonable fees and expenses of Bond 
Counsel, financial consultants and counsel to the Bank, reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee incurred prior to 
the completion of the Project in accordance with the Agreement, any recording or similar fees and any expenses of 
the Institution in connection with the issuance of the Bonds.  After all costs of issuing the Bonds have been paid, any 
amounts remaining in the Expense Fund shall be transferred to the Construction Fund.  To the extent the Expense 
Fund is insufficient to pay any of the above costs, the Institution shall be liable for the deficiency and shall pay such 
deficiency as directed by the Authority.  (Section 305) 

Rebate Fund

 Moneys in the Rebate Fund shall be applied by the Trustee to the payment when due of any rebate due to 
the United States under IRC § 148(f) and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  Within thirty days after the close 
of each 12-month period following the original delivery date of the Bonds (a “Bond Year”), the Institution shall 
compute and certify to the Authority and the Trustee the amount of Excess as defined in the Agreement, if any, for 
such Bond Year and shall pay to the Trustee for deposit into the Rebate Fund any amount necessary to make the 
amount in the Rebate Fund equal to the Excess for the Bonds.  (Section 304) 

Application of Moneys

 If, in addition to moneys drawn on the Credit Facility (if any), available moneys in the Bond Fund are not 
sufficient on any day to pay all principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Bonds then due or 
overdue, such moneys shall, after payment of all amounts owing to the Trustee and the Authority under the 
Agreement, be applied first to the payment of interest, including interest on overdue principal, in the order in which 
the same became due (pro rata with respect to interest which became due at the same time) and second to the 
payment of principal and redemption premiums, if any, without regard to the order in which the same became due in 
each case pro rata among Bondowners, provided, however, that amounts drawn on the Credit Facility (if any) shall 
be applied exclusively to pay interest, premium, if any, and principal on the Bonds in accordance with the Credit 
Facility.  If the owners of any Bonds have received all payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest that have 
become due and payable from a draw on the Credit Facility, the Bank shall be treated as the owner of such Bonds 
for purposes of applying the provisions described under this heading.  In the event there exist Pledged Bonds or 
Institution Bonds on the date of any application of moneys under the provisions described under this heading, 
moneys otherwise to be paid to the Institution or to the Bank pursuant to the provisions described under this heading 
shall be applied (subject to the Agreement) as follows:  first, so long as all payments due on Bonds supported by a 
Credit Facility have been made, pro rata to all Bondowners other than the Institution (but including the Bank to the 
extent provided in the preceding sentence), otherwise first, pro rata to all Bondowners other than the Bank and the 
Institution, second (and irrespective of which clause first applies), if any balance remains, to the Bank in fulfillment 
of any obligations owed to it under the Reimbursement Agreement or any Pledged Bonds (to the extent not satisfied 
pursuant to clause first), and third, if any further balance remains, to the Institution in respect of any Institution 
Bonds.  Whenever moneys are to be applied pursuant to the provisions described under this heading, such moneys 
shall be applied at such times, and from time to time, as the Trustee in its discretion shall determine, having due 
regard to the amount of such moneys becoming available for such application and the likelihood of additional 
moneys becoming available for such application in the future.  Whenever the Trustee shall exercise such discretion 
it shall fix the date (which shall be the first Business Day of a month unless the Trustee shall deem another date 
more suitable) upon which such application is to be made, and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal 
paid on such date shall cease to accrue.  Whenever overdue interest is to be paid on the Bonds, the Trustee may 
establish a special record date as provided in the forms of Bonds.  The Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem 
appropriate of the fixing of any such date and special record date.  When interest or a portion of the principal is to be 
paid on an overdue Bond, the Trustee may require presentation of the Bond for endorsement of the payment.  Prior 
to any payment to be made to the Bank pursuant to clause second of the sixth preceding sentence, the Trustee may 
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require a certificate from the Bank as to amounts due under the Reimbursement Agreement, and the Trustee may 
rely conclusively thereon.  (Section 306) 

Substitute Credit Facility

 Upon satisfaction of the requirements set forth under this heading and subject to the last sentence under this 
heading, the Institution may (except during the period between the giving of notice of mandatory tender for purchase 
on account of the expiration of the Credit Facility and the Purchase Date) replace a Credit Facility then in effect with 
a substitute Credit Facility; provided, however, that (1) the Credit Facility being replaced shall in no event be 
terminated or released until the Institution has given not less than forty-five (45) days’ written notice to the Trustee 
and the Remarketing Agent, and the Trustee has received the proceeds of all outstanding drawings on the Credit 
Facility being replaced, (2) if the Bonds supported by the Credit Facility being replaced are in the Weekly Mode, the 
Trustee has given not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice of the termination or release of the Credit Facility to 
owners of such Bonds in the Weekly Mode and (3) the provider of the substitute Credit Facility purchases all 
outstanding Pledged Bonds, at par plus accrued interest, on the effective date of the substitute Credit Facility.  
Promptly after the substitution or replacement of any Credit Facility, the Trustee shall notify the owners of Bonds in 
the Weekly Mode of the identity of the substitute Credit Facility.  The extension of an existing Credit Facility shall 
not constitute a substitute Credit Facility. 

 Prior to the replacement of any Credit Facility the Institution shall have delivered to the Trustee:  (i) an 
opinion of counsel for the issuer of the substitute Credit Facility to the effect that it constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation of the issuer enforceable in accordance with its terms; (ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the 
effect that the issuance of a substitute Credit Facility will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on such 
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (iii) a certificate of the Bank that all amounts due under 
the Reimbursement Agreement or otherwise owed by the Institution to the Bank has been paid and that the 
Institution has fulfilled all its obligations arising out of such Agreement and (iv) if the Bonds are in the Weekly 
Mode and are rated, evidence of the rating of the Bonds with the substitute Credit Facility by S&P or any other 
rating agency then rating the Bonds.  Notice of the substitution, replacement, termination or extension of a Credit 
Facility shall be sent by the Trustee to S&P, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P.   

Each Credit Facility must: 

  (i) be an irrevocable, unconditional obligation of a financial institution; 

 (ii) in the Fixed Rate Mode be a financial institution whose senior long-term debt obligations 
(or the debt obligations of any guarantor of its obligations) have and investment grade rating from a 
nationally recognized rating agency equal to or greater than that had by the facility being replaced at the 
time of such replacement; 

 (iii) be on terms no less favorable to the Trustee than the Letter of Credit (as to which the 
Trustee may request and rely on a certificate of the Institution) and entitle the Trustee to draw upon or 
demand payment and receive in immediately available funds an amount equal to the sum of the principal 
amount of the Bonds supported by the Credit Facility, any premium applicable thereto, and (A) not less 
than 45 days’ accrued interest at the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal amount of Bonds then 
Outstanding in the Weekly Mode, or (B) not less than two hundred ten (210) days’ accrued interest (or such 
lesser or greater number of days as may be required by any rating agency rating the Bonds in the Fixed 
Rate Mode) at the Fixed Rate on the principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding in the Fixed Rate Mode; 
and

 (iv) provide for a term which, in the Weekly Mode, may not expire or be terminated prior to 
the fifth Business Day after the mandatory tender for purchase as provided in the Agreement.  The 
Institution shall not enter into any Reimbursement Agreement or agree to any amendment of a 
Reimbursement Agreement which in any way limits the obligation of the Bank to provide funds under the 
Credit Facility without the prior written consent of 100% of the principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding 
and entitled to the benefit thereof.  (Section 315) 
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Remarketing of Bonds Tendered

 While the Bonds are in the Weekly Mode, the Remarketing Agent shall solicit offers to purchase and use its 
best efforts to find a purchaser for Tendered Bonds, Bank Bonds and Institution Bonds, provided that Bonds shall 
not be remarketed to the Authority, the Institution, any guarantor of the Bonds (other than the Bank) or “insiders” of 
any of them as that term is defined in the United States Bankruptcy Code.  On the Purchase Date, Bonds remarketed 
under the Agreement shall be made available by the Trustee to the purchasers thereof and shall be registered in the 
manner directed by the recipient thereof, provided that such Bonds shall not be delivered unless and until the Trustee 
has received the Purchase Price therefor.  Bonds not remarketed shall be held by the Trustee.  Bonds previously 
purchased with moneys drawn under the Credit Facility shall not be released by the Trustee upon remarketing unless 
the Credit Facility has been reinstated as provided in the Agreement.  (Section 311) 

Payment for Purchase of Bonds

 The Agreement provides that the Trustee shall draw upon the Credit Facility the amount necessary to 
purchase the Tendered Bonds for which the Remarketing Agent has not received the Purchase Price.  If the 
Remarketing Agent does not deliver to the Trustee proceeds of remarketing sufficient, together with amounts 
received from draws under the Credit Facility, to pay in full the Purchase Price of all Bonds due on the Purchase 
Date, the Trustee shall make an additional draw on the Credit Facility pursuant to the Agreement and thereafter the 
Institution shall be liable for the shortfall.  (Section 310) 

Covenants of the Institution

 In the Agreement, the Institution covenants, among other things:  

 (a)  In the acquisition, construction, maintenance, improvement and operation of the Project, the Institution 
will comply in all material respects with all applicable building, subdivision, zoning and land use, environmental 
protection, historical, sanitary and safety and other laws, rules and regulations and will not permit any nuisance 
thereat, except that failure to comply with any law, rule or regulation shall not be a breach of this covenant so long 
as the Institution is in good faith diligently contesting the validity thereof; and 

 (b)  The Institution will pay in a timely manner all costs of maintaining and operating the Project, except 
that it shall not be a breach of this covenant if the Institution is in good faith contesting the validity or amount 
thereof; and 

 (c)  The Institution shall maintain its existence as a nonprofit corporation qualified to do business in 
Massachusetts and shall not dissolve, dispose of or spin off all or substantially all of its assets, or consolidate with or 
merge into another entity or entities, or permit one or more other entities to consolidate with or merge into it, except 
that it may consolidate with or merge into one or more other entities or permit one or more other entities to 
consolidate with or merge into it, or transfer all or substantially all of its assets to one or more other entities (and 
thereafter dissolve or not dissolve as it may elect), if (a) the surviving, resulting or transferee entity or entities each 
is a corporation described in Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC having the corporate and securities law status and powers 
set forth in the Agreement, (b) the transaction does not result in a conflict, breach or default referred to in the 
Agreement, (c) the surviving, resulting or transferee entity or entities each (i) assumes by written agreement with the 
Authority and the Trustee all the obligations of the Institution under the Agreement, (ii) notifies the Authority and 
the Trustee of any change in the name of the Institution, and (iii) upon such assumption there will not be a Default 
under the Agreement.  (Sections 405, 406 and 1005) 

Events of Default

 “Event of Default” in the Agreement means any one of the events set forth below and “Default” means any 
Event of Default without regard to any lapse of time or notice. 
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 (a) Any principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond shall not be paid when due, 
whether at maturity, by acceleration, upon redemption or otherwise or any Purchase Price for Bonds shall 
not be paid as provided in the Agreement. 

 (b) The Institution shall fail to observe or perform any of its other covenants or agreements 
contained in the Agreement or in the Tax Certificate and such failure shall continue for a period of thirty 
(30) days after written notice given to the Institution by the Trustee or the Bondowners of at least 25% in 
principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding. 

 (c) The occurrence of certain events of bankruptcy or insolvency of the Institution. 

 (d) While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the Trustee shall have received 
written notice from the Bank of the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement 
Agreement. 

 (e) The Trustee shall receive written notice from the Bank within ten (10) days after a 
drawing under the Credit Facility that the Bank has not reinstated the amount so drawn, and such non-
reinstatement causes the total amount of the obligation of the Bank under the Credit Facility to be less than 
the principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds supported by the Credit Facility, plus accrued interest for a 
period of forty-five (45) days at the Maximum Interest Rate with respect to the principal amount of such 
Bonds then Outstanding in the Weekly Mode or two hundred ten (210) days (or such lesser or greater 
number of days as may be required by any rating agency then rating the Bonds in the Fixed Rate Mode) at 
the Fixed Rate if the Bonds are in the Fixed Rate Mode. 

 At any time before an acceleration of Bonds, the Trustee may waive a Default under clause (b) above and 
its consequences by written notice to the Institution, and in the absence of inconsistent instructions from 
Bondowners pursuant to the Agreement shall do so upon written instruction of the owners of at least twenty-five 
percent (25%) in principal amount of such Bonds Outstanding with.  (Section 601) 

Remedies for Events of Default

 If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing: 

 (a) Acceleration.  If the Event of Default is one described in clause (a), (c), (d) or (e), the principal of the 
Bonds and accrued interest thereon shall automatically become immediately due and payable without any further 
notice or action.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if an Event of Default described in clause (a) occurs due to the 
failure of the Trustee to receive sufficient funds for the payment of the Purchase Price of all Bonds supported by a 
Credit Facility tendered for purchase on any Purchase Date, the Trustee shall immediately draw under the Credit 
Facility an amount equal to such deficiency (except to the extent that one or more drawings have been made 
previously in respect of the same deficiency), plus one day’s accrued interest on such Bonds, and only if such Event 
of Default is not cured by the close of business on the next Business Day shall there be such an automatic 
acceleration of the payment of principal of and accrued interest on the Bonds. 

 (b) Rights as a Secured Party.  The Trustee and the Authority, as appropriate, may exercise all of the rights 
and remedies of a secured party under the UCC with respect to securities in the Bond Fund, Construction Fund and 
Expense Fund, including the right to sell or redeem such securities and the right to retain the securities in 
satisfaction of the obligations of the Institution under the Agreement.  Notice sent by registered or certified mail, 
postage prepaid, or delivered during business hours, to the Institution at least seven (7) days before an event under 
UCC Section 9-610 and 611 or any successor provision of law shall constitute reasonable notification of such event.  
(Section 602) 

Court Proceedings

 Subject to the Agreement, the Trustee may enforce the obligations under the Agreement by legal 
proceedings for the specific performance of any covenant, obligation or agreement contained in the Agreement, 
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whether or not an Event of Default exists, or for the enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy, 
and may recover damages caused by any breach by the Authority of the provisions of the Agreement, including (to 
the extent the Agreement may lawfully provide) court costs, reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses 
incurred in enforcing the obligations under the Agreement.  (Section 603) 

Revenues after Default

 After the occurrence of an Event of Default, any funds pledged as security under the Agreement and any 
other moneys received by the Trustee (other than amounts irrevocably set aside to pay particular Bonds) shall be 
applied to amounts due under the Agreement (without regard to any grace periods), which amounts shall be applied 
in the order specified in the Agreement.  (Section 604) 

The Credit Facility; Acceleration

 Upon declaration of acceleration of the Bonds prior to expiration of the Credit Facility, the Trustee shall 
draw immediately on the Credit Facility in accordance with the Agreement in an amount equal to the aggregate 
unpaid principal of and interest on the Bonds supported by the Credit Facility to the date of declaration of 
acceleration for Bonds on which date interest shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee shall not require indemnification 
for any draw required as described under this heading except and unless such instruction is prohibited by or violates 
applicable law or any outstanding or pending court or governmental order or decree, in which event the Trustee 
may, in its discretion, either require indemnification or be excused from making any such draw.  (Section 605) 

Rights of Bondowners

 If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing, and if the Bondowners representing not less than 25% in 
principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding shall have requested the Trustee in writing to exercise one or more of the 
rights and remedies provided under the Agreement and offered it indemnity as provided in the Agreement, the 
Trustee shall be required to exercise such one or more of the rights and remedies under the Agreement as the Trustee 
shall determine to be in the best interest of the Bondowners and not inconsistent with any directions given in 
accordance with the Agreement.  No Bondowner shall have any right to institute an action in law or equity or to 
pursue any other remedy under the Agreement with respect to any Bond unless (i) an Event of Default of which the 
Trustee has been notified has occurred and Bondowners representing not less than 25% in principal amount of the 
Bonds Outstanding shall have requested the Trustee in writing to exercise its rights and remedies with respect 
thereto and shall have offered the Trustee reasonable opportunity to do so and indemnity as provided in the 
Agreement, and (ii) the Trustee shall within a reasonable time thereafter fail to exercise any of such rights or 
remedies.  No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any action or pursue any other remedy if and to the extent 
that the surrender, impairment, waiver, or loss of the lien of the Agreement would, under applicable law, result.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, each Bondowner shall have a right of action to enforce payment of the Bonds at and 
after the due dates thereof at the place, from the sources and in the manner expressed in the Bonds.  For purposes of 
the provisions described under this heading, so long as the Bank has not failed to honor a properly presented and 
conforming draw under the Credit Facility, the Bank issuing such Credit Facility shall be treated as owner of such 
Bonds.  (Section 606) 

Performance of Institution’s Obligations

 If the Institution shall fail to observe or perform any of its agreements or obligations under the Agreement, 
the Trustee may perform the same in its own name or in the Institution’s name and is irrevocably appointed the 
Institution’s attorney-in-fact for such purpose.  Unless an Event of Default exists, the Trustee shall give at least five 
(5) days’ written notice to the Institution before taking action as described under this heading, except that in case of 
emergency as reasonably determined by the acting party, it may act on lesser notice or give the notice promptly after 
rather than before taking the action.  The reasonable cost of any such action performed by the Trustee shall be paid 
or reimbursed by the Institution within thirty (30) days after the Trustee notifies the Institution of such cost.  
(Section 607) 
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Amendments

(a)  Without Bondowners’ Consent.  The parties may from time to time, without the consent of any 
Bondowner, amend the Agreement in order to (i) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in the Agreement that does 
not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (ii) grant additional rights or security to the Trustee 
for the benefit of the Bondowners, (iii) add additional Events of Default as shall not be inconsistent with the 
provisions of the Agreement and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (iv) 
qualify the Agreement under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal 
laws from time to time in effect, (v) effective upon the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, make any amendment affecting 
only the Bonds being converted, (vi) make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising under the 
Agreement as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the Agreement and which shall not materially 
adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, or (vii) effect the delivery of a substitute Credit Facility. So long 
as a Credit Facility supports the Bonds or any obligations remain owing to the Bank under the Reimbursement 
Agreement, no amendment to the Agreement shall be made without the prior written consent of the Bank. 

(b)  With Bondowners’ Consent.  Except as set forth in the paragraph above, the parties may from time to 
time amend the Agreement with the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds Outstanding; provided, that no amendment shall be made which adversely affects the rights of some but less 
than all the Bonds Outstanding without the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds so affected; and provided further, that no amendment of the Agreement shall be effective to (i) change 
the principal, premium or interest on any Bonds, (ii) change the interest payment dates, maturity dates or purchase or 
redemption provisions of any Bonds, (iii) reduce the percentage of Bondowners whose consent is required for the 
amendment of the Agreement or (iv) modify the lien upon or pledge of the payments and other revenues assigned 
and pledged under the Agreement (including any Credit Facility), without the consent, in each case, of the owner of 
each Bond which would be affected by the action proposed to be taken.  (Section 1101) 

Indemnification; Limits of Responsibility; Replacement of the Trustee

 The Agreement sets forth certain immunities and limitations of the responsibilities of the Authority and the 
Trustee and provides for indemnification of the Authority and the Trustee against claims relating to the Agreement 
or the Project.  

 The Trustee may resign on not less than 30 days’ notice given in writing to the Authority, the Bondowners 
and the Institution, but such resignation shall not take effect until a successor has been appointed by the Institution 
and has accepted such position.  The Trustee may be removed by written notice to the parties from the Bondowners 
representing a majority in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding, but no such removal shall take effect until a 
successor has been appointed by the Institution and has accepted such position.  (Sections 702, 704 and 803) 

Defeasance

 When there are in the Bond Fund sufficient funds, or non-callable and non-prepayable Government or 
Equivalent Obligations described in clause (i), (ii) or (iii) of the definition of Government or Equivalent Obligations 
in such principal amounts, bearing interest at such rates and with such maturities (including, with respect to any 
Bonds in the Weekly Mode, maturities no greater than seven (7) days to fund the payment of the Purchase Price) as 
will provide, without reinvestment, sufficient funds to pay the Purchase Price, principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on the Bonds in full as and when such amounts become due, and when all the rights under the Agreement of 
the Authority and the Trustee have been provided for, upon written notice from the Institution to the Authority and 
the Trustee, the Bondowners shall cease to be entitled to any right, benefit or security under the Agreement except 
the right to receive payment of the funds deposited and held for payment and other rights which by their nature 
cannot be satisfied prior to or simultaneously with termination of the lien of the Agreement (including obligations of 
the Institution under the Agreement with respect to rebate and tax status), the security interests created by the 
Agreement (except in such funds and investments) shall terminate, the Bonds shall be deemed paid and the 
Authority and the Trustee shall execute and deliver such instruments as may be necessary to discharge the lien and 
security interests created under the Agreement; provided, however, that (a) with respect to any Bonds that are 
supported by a Credit Facility, all such funds and obligations in the Bond Fund shall be Eligible Funds; (b) if any 
such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, the Authority shall have taken all action necessary to 
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redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in accordance with the Agreement or 
irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to the Trustee; and (c) if the Bonds bear interest at the 
Weekly Rate, the Trustee shall have received written confirmation from S&P, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P, 
that the proposed defeasance will not in and of itself cause a reduction or withdrawal of the rating then in effect on 
the Bonds.  Upon such defeasance, the funds and investments required to pay or redeem the Bonds in full shall be 
irrevocably set aside for that purpose, subject, however, to unclaimed moneys as described in the Agreement, and 
moneys held for defeasance shall be invested only as described above under this heading.  Any funds or property 
held by the Trustee and not required for payment or redemption of the Bonds in full shall, after satisfaction of all the 
rights of the Authority and the Trustee and after allowance for payment into the Rebate Fund, be distributed to the 
Institution upon such indemnification, if any, as the Authority or the Trustee may reasonably require.  (Section 203) 
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APPENDIX D

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. [            ]

Date of Issue: May 20, 2004 

ISSUING BANK: 
Fleet National Bank 
c/o Fleet Pennsylvania Services 
One Fleet Way 
Scranton, PA  18507 

APPLICANT: 
Endicott College 
376 Hale Street 
Beverly, MA 01915 

 BENEFICIARY: 
U.S. Bank National Association, 
as Trustee under Loan and 
Trust Agreement dated as of 
April 20, 2004 
One Federal Street , Third Floor 
Boston, MA  02110 
Attention:  Corporate Trust Services 

 Amount/Currency: 
Up to USD $34,039,555 
Up to THIRTY-FOUR MILLION THIRTY-NINE 
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE 
and No/100 US Dollars 

 Date and Place of Expiry: 
May 20, 2009 at the Issuing Bank 

Dear Sirs: 

At the request and for the account of our customer, Endicott College (the “Institution”), we, Fleet 
National Bank (the “Bank”), hereby establish in your favor, as Trustee under the below-defined 
Indenture, pursuant to which $33,625,000 in aggregate principal amount of Massachusetts Health 
and Educational Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Endicott College 
Issue, Series D (2004) (the “Bonds”) were issued by Massachusetts Health and Educational 
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Facilities Authority (the “Issuer”), this direct pay Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ] in the 
amount of $34,039,555 (the “Stated Amount”), of which (1) $33,625,000 (as from time to time 
reduced or reinstated as provided in this Letter of Credit, the “Principal Component”) shall 
support the payment of the principal or portion of the purchase price corresponding to principal 
of the Bonds, and (2) $414,555 (as from time to time reduced or reinstated as provided in this 
Letter of Credit, the “Interest Component”) shall support the payment of up to 45 days’ interest 
on the Bonds or portion of the purchase price corresponding to interest at an assumed rate of 10% 
per annum, effective immediately and expiring at 5:00 P.M. (Scranton time) on the below-
defined Stated Termination Date or earlier as hereinafter provided.  Any payment pursuant to a 
drawing under this Letter of Credit will be made by us with our own funds, and not from any 
separate funds of the Issuer or the Institution.  As used herein, the term “Indenture” will be 
deemed to mean that certain Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of April 20, 2004 among U.S. 
Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), the Issuer and the Institution.  As used 
herein, the term “Stated Termination Date” means May 20, 2009 (or, if not a Business Day, the 
next succeeding Business Day). 

We hereby irrevocably authorize you to draw on us, in an aggregate amount not to exceed 
the amount of this Letter of Credit set forth above and in accordance with the terms and 
conditions and subject to the reductions in amount as hereinafter set forth, (1) in one drawing per 
month (subject to the provisions contained in the next following paragraph) by your draft, 
payable at sight on a Business Day, and accompanied by your written and completed certificate 
signed by you in the form of Annex A attached hereto (such draft accompanied by such 
certificate being your “Interest Draft”), an amount not exceeding the Interest Component, 
representing 45 days’ interest on the Bonds, computed at an assumed rate of [10%] per annum; 
(2) in one or more drawings by one or more of your drafts, payable at sight on a Business Day, 
and accompanied by your written and completed certificate signed by you in the form of 
Annex B attached hereto (any such draft accompanied by such certificate being your “Tender 
Draft”), an aggregate amount not exceeding the sum of the Principal Component and the Interest 
Component; (3) in one or more drawings by one or more of your drafts, payable at sight on a 
Business Day, and accompanied by your written and completed certificate signed by you in the 
form of Annex C attached hereto (any such draft accompanied by such certificate being your 
“Partial Redemption Draft”), an aggregate amount not exceeding the sum of the Principal 
Component and the Interest Component; and (4) in a single drawing by your draft, payable at 
sight on a Business Day, and accompanied by your written and completed certificate signed by 
you in the form of Annex D attached hereto (such draft accompanied by such certificate being 
your “Final Draft”, and any Interest Draft, Tender Draft, Partial Redemption Draft, or Final Draft 
referred to in this paragraph being a “Draft”), an amount not exceeding the sum of the Principal 
Component and the Interest Component.  Each such Draft shall cover principal of and/or accrued 
and unpaid interest on the Bonds.  “Business Day” means any day (i) that is not a Saturday, 
Sunday or legal holiday, (ii) on which banks are not required or authorized to close in New York, 
New York or Boston, Massachusetts, (iii) on which banking institutions in each of the cities in 
which the principal offices of the Trustee, the principal office of the Remarketing Agent (as 
defined in the Indenture) and our principal office (and our office specified herein for draws 
hereunder) are located are not required or authorized to remain closed and (iv) on which the New 
York Stock Exchange is not closed. 
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If you shall draw on us by your Interest Draft under clause (1) of the immediately 
preceding paragraph and you shall not have received from us within ten (10) calendar days from 
the date of such drawing a written notice to the effect that a default exists under our letter of 
credit and reimbursement agreement with the Institution and that the Interest Component of the 
Letter of Credit will not be reinstated, your right to draw on us in a single drawing by your 
Interest Draft under said clause (1) shall be automatically reinstated and, effective the eleventh 
(11th) calendar day from the date of such drawing, you shall again be authorized to draw on us 
by your Interest Draft in accordance with said clause (1), provided, however, that the Interest 
Component of this Letter of Credit shall be decreased as hereinafter provided in connection with 
amounts drawn pursuant to Partial Redemption Drafts or any Tender Draft.  The automatic 
reinstatement of your right to draw on us by your Interest Draft shall be applicable to successive 
drawings by your Interest Drafts under clause (1) of the immediately preceding paragraph so long 
as this Letter of Credit shall not have terminated as set forth below. 

Upon our honoring any Tender Draft or Partial Redemption Draft presented by you 
hereunder, (i) the Principal Component of this Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be 
drawn hereunder by you with respect to principal of the Bonds by any subsequent Tender Draft, 
Partial Redemption Draft and Final Draft shall be automatically decreased by an amount equal to 
the portion of such Tender Draft or Partial Redemption Draft relating to principal of the Bonds, 
and (ii) the Interest Component of this Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be drawn 
hereunder by you with respect to accrued and unpaid interest on the Bonds by any subsequent 
Interest Draft, Tender Draft, Partial Redemption Draft and Final Draft shall be automatically 
decreased by an amount equal to the portion of the Interest Component relating to Bonds 
purchased or redeemed with the proceeds of such Tender Draft or Partial Redemption Draft, 
subject to reinstatement (if any) as follows: 

(i) with respect to any decrease upon payment of any Tender Draft, the 
amount of the Principal Component of this Letter of Credit and the portion of the Interest 
Component relating thereto shall be increased when and to the extent, but only when and 
to the extent, that we are reimbursed by or on behalf of the Institution for any amount 
drawn hereunder by any Tender Draft.  Any amount received by us from or on behalf of 
the Institution in reimbursement of amounts drawn hereunder by any Tender Draft shall, 
if accompanied by your completed and signed certificate signed by you in the form of 
Annex E attached hereto, be applied to the extent of the amount indicated therein to 
reimburse us for amounts drawn hereunder by your Tender Drafts; and 

(ii) with respect to any decrease upon payment of any Partial Redemption 
Draft or Final Draft, the amount of the Principal Component relating thereto shall not be 
reinstated.

Funds from us under this Letter of Credit are available to you against  presentation of 
your Interest Draft (with certificate of Annex A), your Tender Draft (with certificate in the form 
of Annex B), your Partial Redemption Draft (with certificate in the form of Annex C), or your 
Final Draft (with certificate in the form of Annex D).  Each sight draft drawn under this Letter of 
Credit must bear on its face the clause “Drawn under Fleet National Bank Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ].”  Each Draft shall be presented to us at the following address:  Fleet National 
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Bank, c/o Fleet Pennsylvania Services, Global Trade Operations, One Fleet Way, Scranton, PA 
18507, attention: Standby Letter of Credit Unit, Mail Code PAEH0802SM.  A Draft shall be 
deemed to have been presented on the date actually received by us.  Presentation will also be 
deemed made upon our receipt of your telecopier transmission to us (at Fax No. (570) 330-4187) 
of a facsimile of the appropriate sight draft and drawing certificate properly completed and 
signed, together with (i) your undertaking to send to us by nationally recognized overnight 
courier, for receipt on the next following Business Day, the signed originals of such documents 
and (ii) your telephonic advice to us (at (570) 330-4214 or such other number as we shall specify 
to you) of your sending of the above-described telecopier transmission. Presentation may not be 
made in any manner other than as provided in this paragraph.  If we receive any of your Drafts 
(other than a Tender Draft) at our aforesaid office, all in strict conformity with the terms and 
conditions of this Letter of Credit, not later than 10:00 A.M. (Scranton  time) on a Business Day 
(provided that this Letter of Credit has not been terminated), we will cause payment by 1 P.M. 
(Scranton time) on the following Business Day in accordance with your payment instructions.  If 
we receive your Drafts (other than a Tender Draft) at our aforesaid office, all in strict conformity 
with the terms and conditions of this Letter of Credit, after 10 A.M. (Scranton time) on a 
Business Day (provided that this Letter of Credit has not been terminated), we will cause 
payment of same by 12 Noon (Scranton time) on the second succeeding Business Day in 
accordance with your payment instructions.  If we receive any Tender Draft at our aforesaid 
office, all in strict conformity with the terms and conditions of this Letter of Credit, not later than 
10 A.M. (Scranton time) on any Business Day (provided that this Letter of Credit has not been 
terminated), we will cause payment of the same by 2 P.M. (Scranton time) on the same Business 
Day in accordance with your payment instructions.  A Tender Draft so received after 10 A.M. 
(Scranton time) on any Business Day (provided this Letter of Credit has not been terminated) will 
be deemed, for the purposes of this paragraph and the next following paragraph, to have been 
received on the next succeeding Business Day.  If requested by you, payment under this Letter of 
Credit may be made by wire transfer of Federal Reserve Bank of Boston funds to your account in 
a bank on the Federal Reserve wire system or by deposit of same day funds into a designated 
account that you maintain with us.  As used in this Letter of Credit, “cause payment” shall mean 
(i) the deposit of same day funds into a designated account with us, if such deposit is requested; 
(ii) if wire transfer is requested, the entry of an appropriate wire transfer in the Federal Reserve 
wire system and the obtaining of a Federal Reserve reference number; or (iii) otherwise, the 
mailing of a check. 

Upon the earliest of (i) our honoring your Final Draft (with a certificate in the form of 
Annex D) presented hereunder accompanied by this Letter of Credit, (ii) the date on which we 
receive a certificate signed by you accompanied by this Letter of Credit stating that the Institution 
has provided and you have accepted a substitute or replacement “Credit Facility” (as defined in 
the Indenture) in accordance with the terms of the Indenture that is effective the date of such 
certificate, (iii) 5 P.M. (Scranton time) on the date on which we receive a certificate signed by 
you accompanied by this Letter of Credit stating that a Fixed Rate Conversion Date (as defined in 
the Indenture) has occurred pursuant to the Indenture or (iv) the Stated Termination Date, this 
Letter of Credit shall terminate. 

This Letter of Credit is transferable in its entirety (but not in part) to any transferee whom 
you certify to us has succeeded you as Trustee under the Indenture, and may be successively 
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transferred.  Transfer of the available balance under this Letter of Credit to such transferee shall 
be effected by the presentation to us of this Letter of Credit accompanied by a certificate in the 
form of Annex F attached hereto.  Upon such presentation, we shall forthwith transfer the same 
to your transferee or, if so requested by your transferee, issue a letter of credit to your transferee 
with provisions therein consistent with this Letter of Credit.  A transfer fee is payable to us by the 
Institution as set forth in our letter of credit and reimbursement agreement with the Institution, 
but the payment of such fee is not a condition to such transfer. 

This Letter of Credit sets forth in full our undertaking, and such undertaking shall not in 
any way be modified, amended, amplified or limited by reference to any document, instrument or 
agreement referred to herein (including, without limitation, the Bonds), except only the Drafts 
referred to herein, which are hereby incorporated by reference; and any such reference shall not 
be deemed to incorporate herein by reference any document, instrument or agreement except for 
such Drafts. 

Only you (or a transferee permitted by the terms of this Letter of Credit) may make 
drawings under this Letter of Credit.  Upon the payment to you or to your account of the amount 
specified in a sight draft drawn hereunder, we shall be fully discharged on our obligation under 
this Letter of Credit with respect to such draft, and we shall not thereafter be obligated to make 
any further payments under this Letter of Credit with respect to such draft to you or to any other 
person who may have made to you or who makes to you a demand for payment of principal of, or 
interest on, any Bond. 

To the extent consistent with the express provisions hereof, this Letter of Credit shall be 
governed by the laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, except to the extent such laws 
are inconsistent with International Standby Practices 1998 (“ISP98”) in which event ISP98 shall 
govern except as modified hereby (including, without limitation, the provisions on 
transferability). 

Communications with respect to this Letter of Credit shall be in writing and shall be 
addressed to us at Fleet National Bank, c/o Fleet Pennsylvania Services, Global Trade 
Operations, One Fleet Way, Scranton, PA 18507, attention: Standby Letter of Credit Unit, Mail 
Code PAEH0802SM, and shall specifically refer to the number of this Letter of Credit. 

Very truly yours, 

FLEET NATIONAL BANK

By:  
     Authorized Signature 
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 Annex A

 [Form of Certificate for Interest Draft] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF UP 
TO 45 DAYS’ INTEREST” 

 Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ]

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to Fleet National Bank (the ‘Bank’), with reference to Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ] (the ‘Letter of Credit’, the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein 
being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Bank in favor of the Trustee, as follows: 

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to 
a payment of interest on Bonds on an interest payment date, which payment is due and 
payable.  As of the record date for such interest payment, none of such Bonds to which 
this drawing relates were Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms were 
defined in the Indenture. 

(3) [The Interest Draft accompanying this Certificate is the first Interest Draft 
presented by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit, and covers interest on the Bonds 
accruing on and after May __, 2004.]1  [The Interest Draft last presented by the Trustee 
under the Letter of Credit was honored and paid by the Bank on ___________  __, _____, 
and the Trustee has not received a notice within ten days of presentation of such Interest 
Draft from the Bank that a default exists under the letter of credit and reimbursement 
agreement between the Institution and the Bank.]2

(4) The amount of the Interest Draft accompanying this Certificate is 
$____________.  It was computed in compliance with the terms and conditions of the 
Bonds and the Indenture and does not exceed the amount available to be drawn by the 
Trustee as the Interest Component under the Letter of Credit. 

(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of the amount demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the interest amount 
owing on account of the Bonds on an interest payment date, (b) no portion of said amount 

1 To be used in the Certificate relating to the first Interest Draft only. 

2 To be used in each Certificate relating to each Interest Draft other than the first Interest Draft. 
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shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said 
amount shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this certificate as of 
the ____ day of ____________, _____. 

_________________________________ as Trustee 

By:  
Name:
Title:
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 Annex B

 [Form of Certificate for Tender Draft] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF THE 
PURCHASE PRICE OF BONDS TENDERED AT THE OPTION OF THE HOLDERS 

THEREOF OR PURSUANT TO MANDATORY TENDER” 

 Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ]

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to Fleet National Bank (the ‘Bank’), with reference to Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ] (the ‘Letter of Credit’, the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein 
being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Bank in favor of the Trustee, as follows: 

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment, upon a tender of all or less than all of the Bonds that are outstanding (as defined in the 
Indenture), of the unpaid principal amount of, and up to 45 days’ accrued and unpaid interest on, 
the Bonds to be purchased as a result of [optional tender pursuant to the terms of Section 
301(d)(iii) of the Indenture] [mandatory tender pursuant to the terms of Sections 301(d)(iv)(A) 
and 301(d)(iv)(B) of the Indenture]3 (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those 
terms are defined in the Indenture), which payment is due on the date on which this Certificate 
and the Tender Draft it accompanies are being presented to the Bank, or on the next Business 
Day. 

(3) The amount of the Tender Draft accompanying this Certificate is equal to the sum 
of (i) $____________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid principal of Bonds (other 
than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture) to be 
purchased as a result of a tender, and (ii) $___________ being drawn in respect of the payment 
of accrued and unpaid interest on such Bonds. 

(4) The Trustee shall register or cause to be registered in the name of the Bank, or its 
designee, as pledgee of the Institution, and shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Bank or its 
designee a principal amount of Bonds equal to the principal amount of the Tender Draft 
accompanying this Certificate as promptly as practicable, unless the Bonds are issued in book-
entry form to DTC, in which case the books of the Trustee shall reflect that the Trustee holds the 
Pledged Bonds as agent of the Bank as pledgee, and in any event within three (3) Business Days 
after presentation of the Tender Draft accompanying this Certificate. 

3 Select one. 
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(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of the amount demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the purchase price of, and 
accrued and unpaid interest on, Bonds tendered pursuant to the Indenture, (b) no portion of said 
amount shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said 
amount shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

(6) The amount of the Tender Draft accompanying this Certificate was computed in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does not exceed 
the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the amount being 
drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and the amount being 
drawn hereby in respect of principal does not exceed the Principal Component. 

The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon the 
Bank’s honoring of the Tender Draft accompanying this Certificate, the amount of the Letter of 
Credit and the amounts available to be drawn by the Trustee thereunder by any subsequent 
Interest Draft, Tender Draft, Purchase Draft, Partial Redemption Draft and Final Draft are 
automatically decreased, subject to reinstatement as set forth in the Letter of Credit. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the ____ day of _____________, _____. 

       as Trustee 

By:       
Name:
Title: 
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Annex C

 [Form of Certificate for Partial Redemption Draft] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF 
PRINCIPAL AND UP TO 45 DAYS’ INTEREST UPON PARTIAL REDEMPTION” 

 Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ]

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to Fleet National Bank (the ‘Bank’), with reference to Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ] (the ‘Letter of Credit’, the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein 
being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Bank in favor of the Trustee, as follows: 

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment, upon redemption of less than all of the Bonds that are Outstanding (as defined in the 
Indenture), of the unpaid principal amount of, and up to 45 days’ accrued and unpaid interest on, 
the Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to Section 309 of the Indenture (other than Institution Bonds 
or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture). 

(3) The amount of the Partial Redemption Draft accompanying this Certificate is 
equal to the sum of (i) $_________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid principal of 
Bonds (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the 
Indenture) to be redeemed, and (ii) $_________ being drawn in respect of the payment of 
accrued and unpaid interest on such Bonds. 

(4) The amount of the Partial Redemption Draft accompanying this Certificate was 
computed in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does 
not exceed the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the 
amount being drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and the 
amount being drawn hereby in respect of principal does not exceed the Principal Component. 

(5) This Certificate and the Partial Redemption Draft it accompanies are dated, and 
are being presented to the Bank for payment on, the date on which the unpaid principal amount 
of and interest on Bonds to be redeemed are due and payable under the Indenture upon 
redemption of less than all of the Bonds that are Outstanding (as defined in the Indenture). 

(6) Upon receipt by the undersigned of the amount demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the principal amount of, 
and accrued and unpaid interest on, Bonds to be redeemed pursuant to the Indenture, (b) no 
portion of said amount shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no 
portion of said amount shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 
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The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon the 
Bank’s honoring the Partial Redemption Draft accompanying this Certificate, the amount of the 
Letter of Credit and the amounts available to be drawn by the Trustee thereunder by any 
subsequent Interest Draft, Tender Draft, Partial Redemption Draft, Purchase Draft and Final 
Draft are automatically and permanently decreased by the amounts set forth in the Letter of 
Credit.  The Trustee acknowledges that pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence, the 
Principal Component of the Letter of Credit is being permanently reduced by $_____________ 
(the amount set forth in clause (i) of Paragraph 3 above) and the maximum amount to which the 
Interest Component can be reinstated under the Letter of Credit is being permanently reduced by 
$___________ (the product of (x) the amount set  forth  in clause (i) of Paragraph 3 above, times 
(y) 0.10, times (z) 45/365). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the ____ day of _____________, _____. 

 as Trustee

By:  
Name:
Title:
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 Annex D

 [Form of Certificate for Final Draft] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR DRAWING IN CONNECTION WITH THE PAYMENT OF 
PRINCIPAL AND UP TO 45 DAYS’ INTEREST, UPON STATED OR ACCELERATED 

MATURITY OR OPTIONAL OR MANDATORY REDEMPTION AS A WHOLE” 

 Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ]

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to Fleet National Bank (the ‘Bank’), with reference to Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ] (the ‘Letter of Credit’, the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein 
being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Bank in favor of the Trustee, as follows: 

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The Trustee is making a drawing under the Letter of Credit with respect to a 
payment4

 upon stated maturity, pursuant to Section 301 of the Indenture, 

 upon acceleration, pursuant to Section 605 of the Indenture, 

 upon optional redemption as a whole, pursuant to Section 309(c) of the 
Indenture, 

 upon mandatory redemption as a whole, pursuant to [Section 309(a)] 
[Section 309(b)] of the Indenture, 

of the unpaid principal amount of and up to 45 days’ accrued and unpaid interest on, all of the 
Bonds that are Outstanding within the meaning of the Indenture (other than Institution Bonds or 
Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture). 

(3) The amount of the Final Draft accompanying this Certificate is equal to the sum 
of (i) $__________ being drawn in respect of the payment of unpaid principal of Bonds (other 
than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds, as those terms are defined in the Indenture), and (ii) 
$_____________ being drawn in respect of the payment of accrued and unpaid interest on such 
Bonds. 

(4) The amount of the Final Draft accompanying this Certificate was computed in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds and the Indenture and does not exceed 

4 Check applicable section. 
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the amount available to be drawn by the Trustee under the Letter of Credit; the amount being 
drawn hereby in respect of interest does not exceed the Interest Component and the amount being 
drawn hereby in respect of principal does not exceed the Principal Component. 

(5) Upon receipt by the undersigned of the amount demanded hereby, (a) the 
undersigned will apply the same directly to the payment when due of the principal amount of, 
and accrued and unpaid interest on, the Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, (b) no portion of said 
amount shall be applied by the undersigned for any other purpose, and (c) no portion of said 
amount shall be commingled with other funds held by the undersigned. 

The Trustee acknowledges that, pursuant to the terms of the Letter of Credit, upon the 
Bank’s honoring the Final Draft accompanying this Certificate, the Letter of Credit is 
automatically terminated and no further amounts are available to be drawn by the Trustee 
thereunder.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the ____ day of _____________, _____. 

       as Trustee

By:  
Name:
Title: 
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Annex E

 [Form of Reinstatement Certificate for Tender Draft] 

“CERTIFICATE FOR THE REINSTATEMENT OF AMOUNTS AVAILABLE UNDER 
IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. [   ]”

The undersigned, a duly authorized officer of the undersigned Trustee (the ‘Trustee’), 
hereby certifies to Fleet National Bank (the ‘Bank’), with reference to Irrevocable Letter of 
Credit No. [   ] (the ‘Letter of Credit’, the terms defined therein and not otherwise defined herein 
being used herein as therein defined) issued by the Bank in favor of the Trustee, as follows: 

(1) The Trustee is the Trustee under the Indenture. 

(2) The undersigned has received $____________ in payment for Pledged Bonds 
being remarketed and is holding such funds for your account and will deliver such funds to you, 
on behalf of the Institution, to reimburse you, pursuant to Section 2(f)(ii) of the Letter of Credit 
and Reimbursement Agreement dated as of May 20, 2004 (the “Reimbursement Agreement”) 
between the Institution and the Bank, for amounts drawn under the Letter of Credit by Tender 
Drafts.  Of such amount, $_________ represents the aggregate principal amount of Bonds resold 
or to be resold on behalf of the Institution.  As a result of such payment, the Principal Component 
of the Letter of Credit is hereby reinstated in an amount equal to such principal amount and the 
Interest Component of the Letter of Credit shall be reinstated in an amount relating to such 
principal amount of such Bonds. 

(3) The undersigned has not received notice from you of the occurrence of an Event 
of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Trustee has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the ____ day of _____________, _____. 

       as Trustee 

By:___________________________________ 
Name:
Title:

D-14



Annex F

 [Form of Transfer Certificate] 

 “INSTRUCTION TO TRANSFER” 

 Date:_______________ 

Fleet National Bank 
C/o Fleet Pennsylvania Services 
Trade Services Operations 
One Fleet Way 
Scranton, PA  18507 
Attention:  Standby Letter of Credit Unit 
  Mail Code:  PAEH08025M 

Re: Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. [   ] 

Gentlemen:

For value received, the undersigned beneficiary hereby irrevocably transfers to: 

 _______________________ 
 [Name of Transferee] 

 _______________________ 
 [Address] 

all rights of the undersigned beneficiary to draw under the above-captioned Letter of Credit (the 
‘Letter of Credit’).  The transferee has succeeded the undersigned as Trustee under the Indenture 
(as defined in the Letter of Credit). 

By this transfer, any and all rights of the undersigned beneficiary in the Letter of Credit 
are transferred to the transferee and the transferee shall hereafter have the sole rights as 
beneficiary thereof; provided, however, that no right shall be deemed to have been transferred to 
the transferee until such transferee complies with the requirements of the Letter of Credit 
pertaining to transfers. 
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The Letter of Credit is returned herewith and in accordance therewith we ask that this 
transfer be effective and that you transfer the Letter of Credit to our transferee or that, if so 
requested by the transferee, you issue a new irrevocable letter of credit in favor of the transferee 
with provisions consistent with the Letter of Credit. 

Very truly yours, 

        
as Predecessor Trustee 

By:  
Name:
Title:
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APPENDIX E 

THE BANK 

General

The following information concerning Fleet National Bank (the “Bank”) has been 
provided by representatives of the Bank and has not been independently certified or verified by 
the Issuer, the Borrower or the Underwriter. 

The Bank is a national banking association which, directly or through its subsidiaries, is 
engaged in retail banking, commercial banking and investment management and other financial 
services activities.  Prior to the completion of the merger described below, the Bank was a 
subsidiary of FleetBoston Financial Corporation (“FleetBoston”).  As of December 31, 2003, the 
Bank had total assets of $192.3 billion, total deposits of $146.5 billion and total equity capital of 
$19.6 billion. 

 On April 1, 2004, FleetBoston completed its merger with Bank of America Corporation, 
a Delaware corporation, a bank holding company, and a financial holding company (“Bank of 
America”).  At that time, the Bank became a subsidiary of Bank of America.  Bank of America, 
headquartered in Charlotte, North Carolina, operates in 21 states and the District of Columbia 
and has offices located in 30 countries.  Bank of America and its subsidiaries provide a 
diversified range of banking and certain non-banking financial services and products both 
domestically and internationally through four business segments: Consumer and Commercial 
Banking, Asset Management, Global Corporate and Investment Banking, and Equity 
Investments.

At a future date that has yet to be determined, the Bank is expected to merge with Bank 
of America, N.A., Bank of America’s other principal banking subsidiary.  Information presented 
or incorporated by reference herein concerning the Bank relates solely to the Bank on a stand-
alone basis exclusive of Bank of America, N.A. 
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Additional Information

The foregoing summary information is provided for convenience purposes only.  
Important additional information with respect to Bank of America and the Bank is contained in 
the following documents: 

(a) Bank of America’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  

(b) Bank of America’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 
31, 2004, on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

(c) Bank of America’s Current Reports on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission on January 2, 2004, January 15, 2004, January 29, 2004, February 17, 
2004, February 19, 2004, March 2, 2004, March 10, 2004, March 15, 2004, March 18, 2004, 
March 22, 2004, March 23, 2004, March 30, 2004, April 1, 2004 (as amended on April 14, 2004 
and May 7, 2004), April 9, 2004, April 14, 2004, April 16, 2004 (two reports) and May 6, 2004. 

(d) Unaudited financial information in the Call Report of the Bank for the period 
ended December 31, 2003, as filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

The Bank will provide, upon written request, copies of such reports to any purchaser or 
prospective purchaser of the Bonds.  The Bank also refers any purchaser or prospective 
purchaser of the Bonds to (i) all annual, quarterly and current reports filed with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission by Bank of America subsequent to those reports described above and 
(ii) all Call Reports of the Bank for periods subsequent to those described above. 
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FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION 

[Closing Date] 

Massachusetts Health and Educational 
   Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street, Suite 1000 
Boston, Massachusetts  02110 

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance by the Massachusetts Health and Educational 
Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) of the following bonds (the “Bonds”): 

$33,625,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, 
Endicott College Issue, Series D (2004) 

We have examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as deemed necessary to render this 
opinion, including the Loan and Trust Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of April 20, 2004, among the 
Authority, Endicott College (the “Institution”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (the “Trustee”). 

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations of the Authority and the 
Institution contained in the Agreement, the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished 
to us and certifications by officials of the Institution, without undertaking to verify the same by independent 
investigation. 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement.  The Bonds are payable solely from the moneys to be received 
under the Agreement, including amounts drawn by the Trustee under a letter of credit supporting the Bonds (the 
“Letter of Credit”) issued by Fleet National Bank (the “Bank”) to the Trustee pursuant to a Letter of Credit and 
Reimbursement Agreement dated May 20, 2004 between the Institution and the Bank (the “Reimbursement 
Agreement”).  Under the Agreement the Institution has agreed to make payments sufficient to pay when due the 
principal (including sinking fund installments) of, premium (if any) and interest on the Bonds.  Such payments and 
other moneys payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, including proceeds derived from any 
security provided thereunder (collectively, the “Revenues”), and the rights of the Authority under the Agreement to 
receive the same (excluding, however, certain administrative fees, indemnification and reimbursements), are pledged 
and assigned by the Authority as security for the Bonds. 

Based on our examination, we are of opinion, as of the date hereof and under existing law, as follows: 

 1. The Authority is a duly created and validly existing body corporate and politic and a public 
instrumentality of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts with the power to enter into and perform its obligations 
under the Agreement and to issue the Bonds. 

 2. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and is a valid 
and binding obligation of the Authority enforceable upon the Authority.  As provided in Chapter 614 of the Acts of 
1968 of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts, as amended, the Agreement creates a valid lien on the Revenues and 
on the rights of the Authority or the Trustee on behalf of the Authority to receive Revenues under the Agreement 
(except certain rights to indemnification, reimbursements and fees). 

 3. The Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and are valid and 
binding special obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the Revenues. 
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 4. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the 
Bonds for federal income tax purposes.  In addition, interest on the Bonds will not be treated as a preference item in 
calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “IRC”) on 
individuals and corporations.  However, we call your attention to the fact that interest on the Bonds will be taken into 
account in determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed 
on corporations (as defined for federal income tax purposes).  We also call your attention to the fact that failure by 
the Authority or the Institution to comply subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds with certain requirements of the 
IRC may cause interest on the Bonds to become includable in the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for federal 
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The Institution and, to the extent necessary, the 
Authority, have covenanted in the Agreement to take all lawful action necessary under the IRC to ensure that interest 
on the Bonds will remain excluded from the gross income of the owners of the Bonds for federal income tax purposes 
and to refrain from taking any action which would cause interest on the Bonds to become included in such gross 
income.  We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds. 

 5. Under existing law, interest on the Bonds and any profit made on the sale thereof are exempt from 
Massachusetts personal income taxes and the Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  We 
express no opinion as to other Massachusetts tax consequences arising with respect to the Bonds nor as to the 
taxability of the Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts. 

It is to be understood that the rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds and the 
Agreement are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting 
creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable and that their enforcement 
may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

Yours faithfully, 
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